## UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

## **SCHEDULE 14A**

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No. \_\_)

Filed by the Registrant  $\boxtimes$ Filed by a Party other than the Registrant  $\square$ 

Check the appropriate box:

- □ Preliminary Proxy Statement
- □ Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))
- ☑ Definitive Proxy Statement
- Definitive Additional Materials
- □ Soliciting Material Pursuant to § 240.14a-12

### Allbirds, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement if other than the Registrant)

Payment of Filing Fee (Check all boxes that apply):

- $\boxtimes$  No fee required.
- □ Fee paid previously with preliminary materials
- □ Fee computed on table in exhibit required by Item 25(b) per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11

allbirds

#### Allbirds, Inc. 730 Montgomery Street San Francisco, CA 94111

#### NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD VIRTUALLY ON JUNE 7, 2024

Dear Stockholder:

We cordially invite you to virtually attend the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Allbirds, Inc., a Delaware public benefit corporation (the "Company"). The meeting will be held on Friday, June 7, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. Pacific Time through a live audio-only webcast at *www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024*.

We are holding the Annual Meeting for the following purposes, which are more fully described in the accompanying materials:

- 1. To elect the three Class III directors listed in the accompanying Proxy Statement to hold office until the 2027 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.
- 2. To ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.
- 3. To conduct any other business properly brought before the meeting or any adjournments, continuations, or postponements thereof.

We have elected to provide Internet access to our proxy materials, which include the proxy statement for our Annual Meeting (the "Proxy Statement") accompanying this notice, in lieu of mailing printed copies. Providing our Annual Meeting materials via the Internet reduces the costs associated with our Annual Meeting and lowers our environmental impact, all without negatively affecting our stockholders' ability to timely access Annual Meeting materials.

On or about April 25, 2024, we expect to mail to our stockholders a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice") containing instructions on how to access the Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023 (the "2023 Annual Report"). The Notice provides instructions on how to vote online and includes instructions on how to receive a paper copy of proxy materials by mail. The Proxy Statement and our 2023 Annual Report can be accessed directly at *www.proxyvote.com* using the control number located on the Notice, on your proxy card, or in the instructions that accompanied your proxy materials.

Our Board of Directors has fixed April 12, 2024 as the record date for this year's Annual Meeting. Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 12, 2024 are entitled to notice of and to vote during the Annual Meeting.

Your vote is important. Whether or not you plan to virtually attend the Annual Meeting, please ensure that your shares are voted during the Annual Meeting by promptly signing and returning a proxy card if you requested a printed set of proxy materials or by using our Internet or telephonic voting system. Even if you

have voted by proxy, you may still vote online if you attend the Annual Meeting. Please note, however, that if your shares are held on your behalf by a brokerage firm, bank, or other agent and you wish to vote at the Annual Meeting, you may need to obtain a proxy issued in your name from that record holder. Please contact your broker, bank, or other agent for information about specific requirements if you would like to vote your shares at the meeting.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Allbirds, we thank you for your continued support and look forward to seeing you at the Annual Meeting.

Sincerely,

Jai Vernichos

Joe Vernachio President, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary

San Francisco, California April 25, 2024

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the Stockholders' Meeting to Be Held on Friday, June 7, 2024 at 12:00 p.m. Pacific Time.

The Proxy Statement and 2023 Annual Report are available at *www.proxyvote.com*.

allbirds

#### Allbirds, Inc. 730 Montgomery Street San Francisco, CA 94111

#### PROXY STATEMENT FOR THE 2024 ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

#### June 7, 2024

#### MEETING AGENDA

Proposals	Page	Voting Standard	<b>Board Recommendation</b>
Election of Class III Directors listed in the accompanying Proxy Statement	8	Plurality	For each director nominee
Ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024	23	Majority of the voting power of the shares present virtually or represented by proxy and voting affirmatively or negatively (excluding abstentions and broker non-votes) on the matter	For

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS

QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THESE PROXY MATERIALS AND VOTING	1
PROPOSAL 1: ELECTION OF DIRECTORS	8
General	8
Vote Required	9
Information About Our Continuing Directors	9
Board Diversity	11
INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE	12
Independence of the Board of Directors	12
Board Leadership Structure	12
Role of the Board in Risk Oversight	12
Meetings of the Board of Directors	13
Information Regarding Committees of the Board of Directors	13
Audit Committee	14
Management Compensation and Leadership Committee	15
Sustainability, Nomination, and Governance Committee	17
Stockholder Recommendations and Nominees	18
Stockholder Communications with the Board of Directors	19
Code of Ethics	19
Corporate Governance Guidelines	20
Anti-Hedging and Anti-Pledging Policies	20
Non-Employee Director Compensation	21
PROPOSAL 2: RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM	23
Vote Required	23
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm Fees and Services	23
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures	24
REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS	25
EXECUTIVE OFFICERS	26
Executive Compensation	26
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	37
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS	40
Related Person Transactions Policy and Procedures	40
Certain Related Person Transactions	41
Indemnification	41
HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS	42
OTHER MATTERS	43

#### QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THESE PROXY MATERIALS AND VOTING

We are providing you with these proxy materials because the Board of Directors of Allbirds, Inc. (the "Board" or the "Board of Directors") is soliciting your proxy to vote at the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting"), including at any adjournments, continuations, or postponements of the meeting.

You are invited to attend the Annual Meeting to vote on the proposals described in this Proxy Statement. However, you do not need to attend the Annual Meeting to vote your shares. Instead you may simply follow the instructions below to submit your proxy. The proxy materials including this Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2023, are being distributed and made available on or about April 25, 2024. As used in this Proxy Statement, references to "we," "us," "our," "Allbirds," and the "Company" refer to Allbirds, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

The information provided in the "question and answer" format below is for your convenience only and is merely a summary of the information contained in this proxy statement. You should read this entire proxy statement carefully. Information contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not incorporated by reference into this proxy statement and references to our website address in this proxy statement are inactive textual references only.

#### Why are you holding a virtual Annual Meeting?

Our Annual Meeting will be held solely in a virtual format, which will be conducted via a live audio-only webcast and online stockholder tools. We have created and implemented the virtual format in order to facilitate stockholder attendance and participation by enabling stockholders to participate fully and equally from any location around the world, at no cost. However, you will bear any costs associated with your internet access, such as usage charges from internet access providers and telephone companies. A virtual Annual Meeting makes it possible for more stockholders (regardless of size, resources, or physical location) to have direct access to information more quickly, while saving the Company and our stockholders time and money. We also believe that the online tools we have selected will increase stockholder communication. For example, the virtual format allows stockholders to communicate with us in advance of, and during, the Annual Meeting so they can ask questions of our Board of Directors or management. During the live Q&A session of the Annual Meeting, we may answer questions as they come in and address those asked in advance, to the extent relevant to the business of the Annual Meeting and as time permits.

#### Why did I receive a notice regarding the availability of proxy materials on the internet?

Pursuant to rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC"), we have elected to provide access to our proxy materials over the internet. Accordingly, we have sent you a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials (the "Notice") because our Board is soliciting your proxy to vote at the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, including at any adjournments, continuations, or postponements of the meeting. All stockholders will have the ability to access the proxy materials on the website referred to in the Notice or request to receive a printed set of the proxy materials. Instructions on how to access the proxy materials over the internet or to request a printed copy may be found in the Notice.

1

We intend to mail the Notice on or about April 25, 2024 to all stockholders of record entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting.

#### How do I attend the Annual Meeting?

We will be hosting the Annual Meeting only through a live audio-only webcast. You can attend the Annual Meeting live online at *www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024* by logging on with your control number. The Annual Meeting will start at 12:00 p.m. Pacific Time, on Friday, June 7, 2024. Online check-in will start approximately 15 minutes before the meeting. We recommend that you log in a few minutes before the Annual Meeting to ensure you are logged in when the Annual Meeting begins. To access the meeting, follow the instructions you will receive in subsequent emails you receive after registration. Information on how to vote online during the Annual Meeting is discussed below. You will not be able to attend the Annual Meeting physically in person.

You are entitled to attend the Annual Meeting if you were a stockholder as of the close of business on April 12, 2024 the record date or hold a valid proxy for the meeting. To be admitted to the Annual Meeting, you will need to visit *www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024* and enter the 16-digit control number found next to the label "Control Number" on your Notice or proxy card if you requested a printed set of proxy materials. If you are a beneficial stockholder, you should contact the bank, broker, or other institution where you hold your account well in advance of the meeting if you have questions about obtaining your control number or proxy to vote.

Whether or not you participate in the Annual Meeting, it is important that you vote your shares.

#### What if I cannot find my control number?

Please note that if you do not have your control number and you are a registered stockholder, you will be able to login as a guest. To view the meeting webcast visit *www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024* and register as a guest. If you login as a guest, you will not be able to vote your shares or ask questions during the meeting.

If you are a beneficial owner (that is, you hold your shares in an account at a bank, broker, or other holder of record), you will need to contact that bank, broker, or other holder of record to obtain your control number prior to the Annual Meeting.

#### Where can we get technical assistance?

If you encounter any difficulties while accessing the virtual meeting during the check-in or meeting time, a technical assistance phone number will be made available on the virtual meeting registration page 15 minutes prior to the start time of the meeting.

#### For the Annual Meeting, how do we ask questions of management and the board?

If you are a stockholder, you may submit a question in advance of the meeting at *www.proxyvote.com* after logging in with your control number. Questions may be submitted during the Annual Meeting through *www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024*. We do not intend to post questions received during the Annual Meeting on our website.

#### Will a list of registered stockholders as of the record date be available?

For the ten days ending the day prior to the Annual Meeting, a list of our registered stockholders as of close of business on the record date will be available for examination by any stockholder of record for a legally valid purpose related to the Annual Meeting at our corporate headquarters during regular business hours.

#### Who can vote at the Annual Meeting?

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on April 12, 2024 will be entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting. On the record date, there were 103,290,503 shares of Class A common stock outstanding and 52,547,761 shares of our Class B common stock outstanding. Our Class A common stock and Class B common stock will vote as a single class on all matters described in this proxy statement for which your vote is being solicited. Stockholders are not permitted to cumulate votes with respect to the election of directors. Each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote on each proposal and each share of Class B common stock is entitled to ten votes on each proposal. Our Class A common stock and Class B common stock are collectively referred to in this proxy statement as our common stock.

#### What am I voting on?

There are two matters scheduled for a vote:

- Proposal 1: Election of three Class III directors to hold office until the 2027 Annual Meeting of Stockholders; and
- Proposal 2: Ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.

#### How does the Board of Directors recommend that I vote on these proposals?

Our Board recommends that you vote your shares:

- "FOR" the election of Dick Boyce, Timothy Brown and Mandy Fields as Class III directors; and
- **"FOR"** the ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024.

#### What if another matter is properly brought before the meeting?

The Board knows of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying proxy to vote on those matters in accordance with their best judgment.

#### How do I vote?

You may either vote "For" all the nominees to the Board or you may "Withhold" your vote for any nominee you specify. For the ratification of the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm, you may vote "For" or "Against" or abstain from voting.

The procedures for voting depend on whether your shares are registered in your name or are held by a bank, broker, or nominee:

#### Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

If on April 12, 2024, your shares were registered directly in your name with Allbirds' transfer agent, Computershare, then you are a stockholder of record. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting, we urge you to vote by proxy to ensure your vote is counted. You may still attend the meeting and vote at the meeting even if you have already voted by proxy. If you are a stockholder of record, you may vote by following the procedures below:

- To vote *during* the Annual Meeting, if you are a stockholder of record as of the record date, follow the instructions at *www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024*. You will need to enter the 16-digit control number found on your Notice, or proxy card if you requested a printed set of proxy materials.
- To vote *prior* to the Annual Meeting (until 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on June 6, 2024), you may vote via the Internet at *www.proxyvote.com*; by telephone; or by completing and returning the proxy card if you requested a printed set of proxy materials, as described below.
  - To vote using the proxy card, simply complete, sign, and date the proxy card that may be delivered and return it promptly in the envelope provided. If you return your signed proxy card to us before the Annual Meeting, we will vote your shares as you direct.
  - To vote over the telephone, dial toll-free 1-800-690-6903 using a touch-tone phone and follow the recorded instructions. You will be asked to provide your control number from the Notice. Your telephone vote must be received by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on June 6, 2024 to be counted.
  - To vote through the internet prior to the meeting, go to *www.proxyvote.com* and follow the instructions to submit your vote on an electronic proxy card. You will be asked to provide your control number from the Notice. Your internet vote must be received by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on June 6, 2024 to be counted.

#### Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker or Bank

If on April 12, 2024, your shares were held not in your name but rather in an account at a brokerage firm, bank, or other similar organization, then you are the beneficial owner of shares held in "street name" and you should have received a Notice containing voting instructions from that organization rather than from Allbirds. Follow the instructions from your broker, bank, or other agent included with the Notice or contact your broker, bank, or other agent regarding how to vote the shares in your account.

Internet proxy voting will be provided to allow you to vote your shares online, with procedures designed to ensure the authenticity and correctness of your proxy vote instructions. However, please be aware that you must bear any costs associated with your internet access, such as usage charges from internet access providers and telephone companies.

#### How many votes do I have?

Each holder of shares of our Class A common stock will have one vote per share of Class A common stock held as of April 12, 2024, and each holder of shares of our Class B common stock will have ten votes per share of Class B common stock held as of April 12, 2024. The holders of the shares of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock will vote as a single class on all matters described in this proxy statement for which your vote is being solicited.

## If I am a stockholder of record and I do not vote, or if I return a proxy card or otherwise vote without giving specific voting instructions, what happens?

If you are a stockholder of record and do not vote via the internet at *www.proxyvote.com*, by telephone, by completing your proxy card if you requested a printed set of materials, or virtually during the Annual Meeting, your shares will not be voted.

If you return a signed and dated proxy card or otherwise vote without marking voting selections, your shares will be voted, as applicable, "For" the election of each of the nominees for director, and "For" the ratification of the selection of the independent registered public accounting firm. If any other matter is properly presented at the meeting, your proxyholder (one of the individuals named on your proxy card) will vote your shares using his or her best judgment.

# If I am a beneficial owner of shares held in street name and I do not provide my broker, bank, or other agent with voting instructions, what happens?

If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name and you do not instruct your broker, bank, or other agent how to vote your shares, your broker, bank, or other agent may still be able to vote your shares in its discretion. In this regard, under stock exchange rules, brokers, banks, and other securities intermediaries may use their discretion to vote your "uninstructed" shares with respect to matters considered to be "routine" under such rules, but not with respect to "non-routine" matters. Proposal 1 is considered to be "non-routine" under such rules, meaning that your broker may not vote your shares on this proposal in the absence of your voting instructions. However, Proposal 2 is considered to be "routine" under such rules, meaning that if you do not return voting instructions to your broker by its deadline, your shares may be voted by your broker in its discretion on Proposal 2.

# If you are a beneficial owner of shares held in street name and you do not plan to attend the meeting, in order to ensure your shares are voted in the way you would prefer, you <u>must</u> provide voting instructions to your broker, bank, or other agent by the deadline provided in the materials you receive from your broker, bank, or other agent.

#### What are "broker non-votes"?

A "broker non-vote" occurs when your broker submits a proxy for the meeting with respect to "routine" matters but does not vote on "non-routine" matters because you did not provide voting instructions on these matters. These un-voted shares with respect to the "non-routine" matters are counted as "broker non-votes." Proposal 1 is considered to be "non-routine" under stock exchange rules and we therefore expect broker non-votes on this proposal. However, because Proposal 2 is considered "routine" under such rules, we do not expect broker non-votes on this proposal since if you hold your shares in street name and do not provide voting instructions to your broker, bank, or other agent that holds your shares, your broker, bank, or other agent has discretionary authority to vote your shares on Proposal 2.

#### How are votes counted?

Votes will be counted by the inspector of election appointed for the meeting, who will separately count, for the proposal to elect directors, votes "For," "Withhold," and broker non-votes; and, with respect to Proposal 2, votes "For" and "Against" and abstentions. Broker non-votes on Proposal 1 will have no effect and will not be counted towards the vote total for this proposal. Withhold votes will not affect the vote for Proposal 1. Abstentions are not applicable with respect to Proposal 1 and will not affect the vote for Proposal 2.

#### How many votes are needed to approve each proposal?

*Proposal 1:* For election of directors, the three nominees receiving the most "For" votes from the holders of shares present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors will be elected. Only votes "For" will affect the outcome.

*Proposal 2:* To be approved, the ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024, must receive "For" votes from the holders of a majority of the voting power of the shares present virtually or represented by proxy and voting affirmatively or negatively (excluding abstentions and broker non-votes) on the matter. If you "Abstain" from voting, it will have no effect on the vote for Proposal 2.

#### Can I change my vote after submitting my proxy?

#### Stockholder of Record: Shares Registered in Your Name

Yes. You can revoke your proxy at any time before the final vote at the meeting. If you are the record holder of your shares, you may revoke your proxy in any one of the following ways:

- You may submit another properly completed proxy card with a later date.
- You may grant a subsequent proxy by telephone or through the internet.
- You may send a timely written notice that you are revoking your proxy to Allbirds' Secretary at 730 Montgomery Street, San Francisco, CA 94111.
- You may attend the Annual Meeting and vote online. Simply attending the meeting will not, by itself, revoke your proxy.

Your most current proxy card or telephone or internet proxy is the one that is counted.

#### Beneficial Owner: Shares Registered in the Name of Broker or Bank

If your shares are held by your broker, bank, or other agent, you should follow the instructions provided by your broker, bank, or other agent.

#### What does it mean if I receive more than one Notice?

If you receive more than one Notice, your shares may be registered in more than one name or in different accounts. Please follow the voting instructions on the Notices to ensure that all of your shares are voted.

#### What is the quorum requirement?

A quorum of stockholders is necessary to hold a valid meeting. A quorum will be present if stockholders holding at least a majority of the voting power of all issued and outstanding shares entitled to vote at the meeting are present at the meeting or represented by proxy.

Abstentions, withhold votes, and broker non-votes will be counted towards the quorum requirement. If there is no quorum, the holders of a majority of shares present at the meeting or represented by proxy may adjourn the meeting to another date.

#### How can I find out the results of the voting at the Annual Meeting?

Preliminary voting results will be announced at the Annual Meeting. In addition, final voting results will be published in a current report on Form 8-K that we expect to file within four business days after the Annual Meeting. If final voting results are not available to us in time to file a Form 8-K within four business days after the meeting,

we intend to file a Form 8-K to publish preliminary results and, within four business days after the final results are known to us, file an additional Form 8-K to publish the final results.

#### Who is paying for this proxy solicitation?

We will pay for the entire cost of soliciting proxies. In addition to these proxy materials, our directors and employees may also solicit proxies in person, by telephone, or by other means of communication. Directors and employees will not be paid any additional compensation for soliciting proxies. We will also reimburse brokerage firms, banks, and other agents for the cost of forwarding proxy materials to beneficial owners.

#### When are stockholder proposals and director nominations due for next year's annual meeting?

To be considered for inclusion in next year's proxy materials, your proposal must be submitted in writing by December 26, 2024 to Allbirds' Secretary at 730 Montgomery Street, San Francisco, CA 94111.

With respect to proposals (including director nominations) not to be included in next year's proxy materials our Amended and Restated Bylaws (the "Bylaws") provide that to be timely you must deliver your notice to our Secretary at the address above between February 7, 2025 and March 9, 2025. Your notice to the Secretary must set forth all of the information specified in our Bylaws, including, without limitation, your name and address and the class and number of shares of our stock that you beneficially own. In the event that we hold the 2025 annual meeting of stockholders more than 30 days before or after the one-year anniversary of the Annual Meeting, notice of a stockholder proposal that is not intended to be included in our proxy statement must be received no earlier than the close of business on the 120<sup>th</sup> day before the 2025 annual meeting of stockholders and no later than the close of business of the later of the following two dates:

- the 90<sup>th</sup> day prior to the 2025 annual meeting of stockholders; or
- the 10<sup>th</sup> day following the day on which public announcement of the date of our 2025 annual meeting of stockholders is first made.

In addition to satisfying the foregoing requirements under our Bylaws, to comply with the universal proxy rules, stockholders who intend to solicit proxies in support of director nominees other than the Company's nominees must provide in their notice the additional information required by Rule 14a-19 under the Exchange Act and comply with the additional requirements of Rule 14a-19(b) under the Exchange Act.

#### **PROPOSAL 1:**

#### **ELECTION OF DIRECTORS**

#### GENERAL

Our Board of Directors is divided into three classes. Each class consists, as nearly as possible, of one-third of the total number of directors, and each class has a three-year term.

The Board presently has eight members. There are three directors in the class whose term of office expires at the Annual Meeting. Upon the recommendation of the Sustainability, Nomination, and Governance Committee (the "SNG Committee"), our Board has nominated the three individuals listed in the table below for election as director at the Annual Meeting. Each nominee is currently a director of the Company who was previously elected by stockholders. If elected at the Annual Meeting, each of these nominees would serve until the 2027 annual meeting and until his successor has been duly elected and qualified, or, if sooner, until the director's death, resignation, or removal. It is the Company's policy to invite and encourage directors and nominees for director to attend the Annual Meeting.

The brief biographies below include information, as of the date of this proxy statement, regarding the specific and particular experience, qualifications, attributes, or skills of each nominee that led the SNG Committee to believe that such nominee should continue to serve on our Board.

Name	Class	Age <sup>(1)</sup>	Term Expires	Position(s) Held	Director Since
Dick Boyce	III	69	2024	Director	2016
Timothy Brown	III	43	2024	Director	2015
Mandy Fields	III	43	2024	Director	2020

(1) As of April 25, 2024

*Dick Boyce.* Mr. Boyce has served as a member of our Board of Directors since December 2016. Mr. Boyce is a former partner at TPG Capital, one of the largest global investment partnerships, where he founded and led TPG's Operating Group from 1997, in which capacity he served on several public company boards of directors, until his retirement in 2013. Mr. Boyce has served as an advisor to Montana Knife Company, a retail company, since June 2021, Proteus Motion Inc. (formerly Boston Biomotion), an intelligent exercise and rehab equipment company, since April 2019, Altamont Capital Partners, a private equity firm, since 2016, and Solamere Capital, LLC, a private equity firm, since 2015. Mr. Boyce also served on the board of directors of Executive Network Partnering Corp., a publicly traded special purpose acquisition corporation, from August 2020 to October 2022. Mr. Boyce holds a B.S.E from Princeton University and an M.B.A from Stanford Graduate School of Business. Mr. Boyce was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of his extensive experience in operations management, investment, and private equity across a spectrum from early stage to large cap companies.

*Timothy Brown.* Mr. Brown has served as a member of our Board of Directors since he co-founded our company in May 2015. Since May 2023, Mr. Brown served as our Chief Innovation Officer. From October 2015 through May 2023, Mr. Brown served as our Co-Chief Executive Officer, and from May 2015 to October 2015, Mr. Brown

served as our Chief Executive Officer. Prior to co-founding Allbirds, Mr. Brown served as Manager in the Innovation Strategy and Business Development Department at Redscout, a brand consulting firm, from March 2015 to August 2015. In 2010, Mr. Brown was Vice Captain of the New Zealand World Cup football team. Mr. Brown holds a B.S. in Design from the College of Design, Architecture, Art, and Planning at the University of Cincinnati and an M.Sc. in International Management from the London School of Economics and Political Science. Mr. Brown was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of the perspective and experience he brings as our co-founder, Chief Innovation Officer and former Co-Chief Executive Officer, as well as his management experience.

*Mandy Fields.* Ms. Fields has served as a member of our board of directors since October 2020. Since April 2019, Ms. Fields has served as Chief Financial Officer of e.l.f. Beauty, Inc., a publicly traded cosmetics company. Previously, Ms. Fields served as Chief Financial Officer of Beverages & More, Inc. (doing business as BevMo!), a beverages retailer, from June 2016 to April 2019. Prior to BevMo! Ms. Fields held various roles at Safeway, an Albertsons banner, as well as at Gap Inc. and JPMorgan. Ms. Fields holds a B.S. in Finance from Indiana University of Bloomington's Kelley School of Business. Ms. Fields was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of her public company management experience and financial management acumen.

#### **VOTE REQUIRED**

Directors are elected by a plurality of the votes of the holders of shares present or represented by proxy and entitled to vote on the election of directors. Accordingly, the three nominees receiving the highest number of affirmative votes will be elected. Shares represented by executed proxies will be voted, if authority to do so is not withheld, for the election of the three nominees named below. If any nominee becomes unavailable for election as a result of an unexpected occurrence, shares that would have been voted for that nominee will instead be voted for the election of a substitute nominee proposed by Allbirds. Each person nominated for election has agreed to serve if elected. The Company's management has no reason to believe that any nominee will be unable to serve.

#### THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE IN FAVOR OF EACH NAMED NOMINEE.

#### INFORMATION ABOUT OUR CONTINUING DIRECTORS

Set forth below are the names, ages, and length of service of the remaining members of our Board whose terms continue beyond the Annual Meeting.

<b>Continuing Directors</b>	Class	Age <sup>(1)</sup>	Term Expires	Position(s) Held	<b>Director Since</b>
Neil Blumenthal	I	43	2025	Director	2018
Ann Freeman	Ι	53	2025	Director	2022
Dan Levitan	II	66	2026	Director	2016
Joseph Zwillinger	II	43	2026	Director	2015
Joe Vernachio	II	59	2026	Director	2024

(1) As of April 25, 2024

The principal occupation, business experience, and education of each continuing director are set forth below.

*Neil Blumenthal.* Mr. Blumenthal has served as a member of our Board of Directors since August 2018. Since 2010, Mr. Blumenthal has served as co-Founder and co-Chief Executive Officer of Warby Parker Inc. ("Warby Parker"), a

publicly traded eyewear brand. In addition, Mr. Blumenthal has served as a member of the board of directors of Warby Parker since May 2009, including serving as its co-chair since June 2021. Mr. Blumenthal also serves on the board of directors of Sweetgreen, Inc., a publicly traded mission-driven food brand, and the nonprofit organizations Warby Parker Impact Foundation, the Partnership Fund for New York City, and RxArt. Mr. Blumenthal also serves on the board of advisors for Responsible Innovation Labs, Tech:NYC and Robin Hood. Mr. Blumenthal has also served as a General Partner of Good Friends, LLC, a venture capital firm, since September 2019. Mr. Blumenthal holds a B.A. in History and International Relations from Tufts University and an M.B.A. from The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Blumenthal was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of his experience as chief executive officer of an online retail company.

*Ann Freeman*. Ms. Freeman has served as member of our Board of Directors since August 2022. From June 1995 to June 2021, Ms. Freeman held multiple roles at NIKE, Inc., a publicly traded international designer, marketer, and distributor of athletic footwear, apparel, equipment, and accessories. Most recently, Ms. Freeman served as NIKE's Vice President and General Manager of North America from June 2020 to June 2021. From December 2018 to May 2020, Ms. Freeman served as NIKE's Vice President of Global Sales. Ms. Freeman holds a B.S. in Finance from Ohio University. Ms. Freeman was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of her extensive management experience in the retail industry, including her expertise in strategy, product and merchandising, marketing, marketplace development, and brand management.

**Dan Levitan.** Mr. Levitan has served as a member of our Board of Directors since July 2016. Mr. Levitan is a Managing Member of Maveron LLC ("Maveron"), a venture capital firm, which he co-founded in January 1998. Mr. Levitan has served as a member of the board of directors of Trupanion, Inc., a publicly traded pet insurance provider, since April 2007. Mr. Levitan currently serves on the boards of directors of numerous private companies and non-profit organizations. Mr. Levitan holds a B.A. in history from Duke University and an M.B.A. from Harvard Business School. Mr. Levitan was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of his extensive board service and venture investment experience.

Joseph Zwillinger. Mr. Zwillinger has served as a member of our Board of Directors since he co-founded our company in May 2015. Mr. Zwillinger previously served as our Chief Executive Officer from May 2023 to March 2024, as our Co-Chief Executive Officer from October 2015 to May 2023, and as our President from the founding of the company in May 2015 to March 2024. Prior to co-founding Allbirds, Mr. Zwillinger served as Vice President of Industrial Products at TerraVia Holdings, Inc. (formerly Solazyme, Inc.), a biotechnology company from 2009 to 2015. Mr. Zwillinger served on the board of directors of Big Sky Growth Partners, Inc., a publicly traded special purpose acquisition corporation, from April 2021 to December 2022. Mr. Zwillinger holds a B.S. in Industrial Engineering and Operations Research from the University of California, Berkeley and an M.B.A. with honors from The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Zwillinger was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of the perspective and experience he brings as our co-founder as well as his management experience.

*Joe Vernachio.* Mr. Vernachio has served as a member of our Board of Directors and as our President, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary since March 2024. From June 2021 to March 2024, Mr. Vernachio served as our Chief Operating Officer. From April 2017 to May 2021, Mr. Vernachio served as President of Mountain Hardwear, Inc., an outdoor apparel, equipment, and accessories company, where he led all aspects of Mountain Hardwear's global business, including brand positioning, go-to-market strategies, and execution across all distribution channels. From March 2011 to March 2017, Mr. Vernachio served in several roles at The North Face, an outdoor products company and subsidiary of VF Corporation, including most recently as Vice President of Global Product from July 2012 to March 2017, in which role he oversaw the brand's apparel, footwear, and equipment across all regions. Mr.

Vernachio holds an A.S. in Forest Sciences and Biology from Paul Smith's College. Mr. Vernachio was selected to serve on our Board of Directors because of his management experience in the retail industry.

#### **BOARD DIVERSITY**

The Board Diversity Matrix, below, provides the diversity statistics for our Board of Directors as of April 25, 2024. We included diversity statistics for our Board of Directors as of April 27, 2023 in our proxy statement for our annual meeting of stockholders held in 2023.

Total Number of Directors	8						
	Female	Male	Non- Binary	Did Not Disclose Gender			
Part I: Gender Identity							
Directors	2	5	0	1			
Part II: Demographic Background							
African American or Black	1	0	0	0			
Alaskan Native or Native American	0	0	0	0			
Asian	0	0	0	0			
Hispanic or Latinx	0	0	0	0			
Native Hawaiian or Pacific Islander	0	0	0	0			
White	1	5	0	0			
Two or More Races or Ethnicities	0	0	0	0			
LGBTQ+			0	•			
Did Not Disclose Demographic Background			1				

<b>D</b> 1 <b>D</b> ! !!				
Board Diversity	y Matrix	(As of A)	pril 25,	2024)

#### INFORMATION REGARDING THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

#### INDEPENDENCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As required under the Nasdaq Stock Market ("Nasdaq") listing standards, a majority of the members of a listed company's board of directors must qualify as "independent," as affirmatively determined by the board. Consistent with these considerations, based on all the relevant facts and circumstances, the Board has affirmatively determined that the following five directors are independent directors within the meaning of the applicable Nasdaq listing standards: Mr. Blumenthal, Mr. Boyce, Ms. Fields, Ms. Freeman and Mr. Levitan. Ms. Weiss was previously determined to be independent during her time on the Board. In making this determination, the Board found that none of these directors or nominees for director had a material or other disqualifying relationship with the Company. Accordingly, a majority of our directors are independent, as required under applicable Nasdaq listing standards.

#### **BOARD LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE**

Mr. Boyce currently serves as the lead independent director of our Board of Directors. The primary responsibilities of the lead independent director are to: (i) preside at all meetings of the Board at which the chairperson is not present, including executive sessions of the independent directors; (ii) act as liaison between the independent directors and the Chief Executive Officer; (iii) preside over meetings of the independent directors; (iv) consult with the Chief Executive Officer in planning and setting schedules and agendas for Board meetings; and (v) perform such other functions as the Board may delegate. We believe that having a lead independent director supports the Board in its oversight of the business and affairs of the Company. In addition, we believe that having a lead independent director creates an environment that is conducive to objective evaluation and oversight of management's performance, increasing management accountability and improving the ability of the Board to monitor whether management's actions are in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders. As a result, Allbirds believes that having a lead independent director can enhance the effectiveness of the Board as a whole.

#### ROLE OF THE BOARD IN RISK OVERSIGHT

Our Board of Directors oversees our risk management processes. In particular, our Board is responsible for monitoring and assessing strategic risk exposure, including a determination of the nature and level of risk appropriate for the Company. The Board has overall responsibility for evaluating key business risks faced by the Company, including but not limited to privacy, technology, information security (including cyber security and back-up of information systems), competition, and regulation. The Board does not have a standing risk management committee, but rather administers this oversight function directly through the Board as a whole, as well as through various Board standing committees that address risks inherent in their respective areas of oversight. Our Audit Committee reviews and discusses with the Board, management, and the auditors the Company's processes and policies on risk identification, management, and assessment in all areas of the Company's business. The Audit Committee has the responsibility to consider and discuss our policies and other matters relating to the Company's investments, cash management and foreign exchange management, major financial risk exposures, the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's privacy and information security policies and practices, including cybersecurity matters, and the internal controls regarding privacy and information security, and the steps taken by management to monitor and mitigate or otherwise control these exposures and to identify future risks. The Audit Committee reviews and discusses with the Board and management the adequacy of the Company's insurance programs, including director and officer insurance, product liability insurance, and general liability insurance. The Audit Committee also helps the Board oversee the Company's privacy and information security policies and legal and regulatory compliance, including risk assessment, in addition to oversight of the performance of our internal audit function.

Our SNG Committee reviews and assesses the adequacy of our corporate governance guidelines and, as appropriate, will recommend any proposed changes to the Board for its consideration and approval, and also plans for leadership succession. Our Management Compensation and Leadership Committee reviews the Company's practices and policies of employee compensation as they relate to risk management and risk-taking incentives to determine if such compensation policies and practices are reasonably likely to have a material adverse effect on the Company. In addition, the entire Board receives reports from time to time from regarding various enterprise risks facing the Company, and the applicable Board committees receive related reports with respect to the committees' respective areas of risk oversight.

#### **MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

The Board of Directors met five times during the last fiscal year. All incumbent Board member attended 75% or more of the aggregate number of meetings of the Board and of the committees on which he or she served, held during the portion of the last fiscal year for which he or she was a director or committee member. Although we do not have a formal policy regarding attendance by members of our Board at annual meetings of stockholders, we encourage directors to attend. Five of the then-serving directors attended our 2023 annual meeting of stockholders.

#### INFORMATION REGARDING COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board has three committees: an Audit Committee, a Management Compensation and Leadership Committee, and a Sustainability, Nomination, and Governance Committee. The following table provides membership and meeting information for fiscal 2023 for each of the Board committees:

Name	Audit	Management Compensation and Leadership	Sustainability, Nomination, and Governance
Neil Blumenthal		X	
Dick Boyce	Х		X*
Timothy Brown			
Mandy Fields	X*		
Ann Freeman		Х	Х
Dan Levitan	Х	X*	
Emily Weiss <sup>(1)</sup>			Х
Joseph Zwillinger			
Total meetings in fiscal 2023	5	6	4

\* Committee Chairperson

(1) Ms. Weiss did not stand for re-election at the Annual Meeting on June 9, 2023. During 2023, she served on the Sustainability, Nomination and Governance Committee.

Below is a description of each committee of the Board of Directors.

The Board and each committee have the power to engage, at the expense of the Company, legal, accounting, or other outside advisors that it may deem necessary. The Board has determined each member of each committee meets the applicable Nasdaq rules and regulations regarding "independence" and each member is free of any relationship that would impair his or her individual exercise of independent judgment with regard to the Company.

#### Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board in accordance with Section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), to oversee the Company's corporate accounting and financial reporting processes and audits of its financial statements. For this purpose, the Audit Committee performs several functions. Specific responsibilities of our Audit Committee include:

- overseeing the Company's accounting and financial reporting processes, systems of internal control, financial statement audits, and the integrity of the Company's financial statements;
- managing the selection, engagement terms, fees, qualifications, independence, and performance of the registered public accounting firm engaged as the Company's independent outside auditors for the purpose of preparing or issuing an audit report or performing audit services;
- maintaining and fostering an open avenue of communication with the Company's management, internal audit group, and the independent outside auditors;
- reviewing any reports or disclosures required by applicable law and listing requirements of any stock exchange on which the Company's securities are listed;
- overseeing the design, implementation, organization, and performance of the Company's internal audit function;
- helping the Board oversee the Company's privacy and information security policies and legal and regulatory compliance, including risk assessment;
- providing regular reports and information to the Board;
- reviewing the results of the audit with management and the independent outside auditors, and reviewing, with management and the independent outside auditors, our annual and quarterly financial statements;
- developing procedures for employees to submit concerns anonymously about questionable accounting or audit matters;
- reviewing and approving any related party transactions;
- obtaining and reviewing a report by the independent outside auditors at least annually that describes our internal quality control procedures, any
  material issues with such procedures, and any steps taken to deal with such issues when required by applicable law; and
- approving or, as permitted, pre-approving, audit and permissible non-audit services to be performed by the independent outside auditors.

The Audit Committee is composed of three directors: Mr. Boyce, Ms. Fields, and Mr. Levitan. The chair of the Audit Committee is Ms. Fields. The Audit Committee met five times during the fiscal year. The Board has adopted a written Audit Committee charter that satisfies the applicable listing standards of Nasdaq and is available to stockholders on the Company's website at *ir.allbirds.com*.

The Board reviews the Nasdaq listing standards definition of independence for Audit Committee members on an annual basis and has determined that all members of the Company's Audit Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 5605(c)(2)(A)(i) and (ii) of the Nasdaq listing standards, including pursuant to Rule 10A-3(b)(1) of the Exchange Act).

The Board has also determined that Ms. Fields qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert," as defined in applicable SEC rules.

#### Management Compensation and Leadership Committee

The Management Compensation and Leadership Committee (the "Compensation Committee") is composed of three directors: Mr. Blumenthal, Ms. Freeman, and Mr. Levitan. The chair of the Compensation Committee is Mr. Levitan. All members of the Company's Compensation Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 5605(d)(2) of the Nasdaq listing standards). The Compensation Committee met six times during the fiscal year. The Board has adopted a written Compensation Committee charter that satisfies the applicable listing standards of Nasdaq and is available to stockholders on the Company's website at *ir.allbirds.com*.

The primary purpose of our Compensation Committee is to discharge the responsibilities of our Board of Directors in overseeing our compensation policies, plans, and programs and to review and determine the compensation to be paid to our executive officers, directors, and other senior management, as appropriate. Specific responsibilities of our Compensation Committee include:

- reviewing and determining the compensation to be paid or awarded to the Company's executive officers and non-employee directors;
- reviewing and recommending to our Board of Directors the compensation of our directors;
- administering our equity incentive plans and other benefit programs;
- reviewing, evaluating, and approving employment agreements, severance agreements, change-of-control protections, corporate performance goals
  and objectives relating to compensation, and other compensatory arrangements of the Company's executive officers and other senior management
  and adjusting compensation, as appropriate; and
- reviewing and establishing general policies relating to compensation and benefits of our employees, including our overall compensation strategy.

#### Compensation Committee Processes and Procedures

Typically, the Compensation Committee meets quarterly and with greater frequency if necessary. The agenda for each meeting is usually developed by the Chair of the Compensation Committee, in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and Compensia, a national compensation consulting firm. The Compensation Committee meets regularly in executive session. However, from time to time, various members of management and other employees as well as outside advisors or consultants may be invited by the Compensation Committee to make presentations, to provide financial or other background information or advice, or to otherwise participate in Compensation Committee meetings. The Chief Executive Officer may not participate in, or be present during, any deliberations or determinations of the Compensation Committee regarding their compensation or individual performance objectives. The charter of the Compensation Committee grants the Compensation Committee full access to all books, records,

facilities, and personnel of the Company. In addition, under its charter, the Compensation Committee has the authority to obtain, at the expense of the Company, legal, accounting, or other outside advisors (including compensation consultants) it deems necessary. The Compensation Committee has sole authority to approve the consultant's reasonable fees and other retention terms. Under its charter, the Compensation Committee may select, or receive advice from, a compensation consultant, legal counsel, or other advisor to the Compensation Committee, other than in-house legal counsel and certain other types of advisors, only after taking into consideration six factors, prescribed by the SEC and Nasdaq, that bear upon the advisor's independence; however, there is no requirement that any advisor be independent.

During the past fiscal year, our Board continued to engage Compensia as our independent compensation consultant. Our Board requested that Compensia:

- evaluate the efficacy of the Company's existing compensation strategy and practices in supporting and reinforcing the Company's long-term strategic goals; and
- assist in refining the Company's compensation strategy and in developing and implementing an executive compensation program to execute that strategy.

As part of its engagement, Compensia was requested by our Board to develop a comparative group of companies and to perform analyses of competitive performance and compensation levels for that group. Compensia developed recommendations that were presented to the Board for its consideration, which the Board approved.

Under its charter, the Compensation Committee may form, and delegate authority to, subcommittees as appropriate.

Historically, the Compensation Committee has made most of the significant adjustments to annual compensation, determined bonus and equity awards, and established new performance objectives at one or more meetings held during the first quarter of the year. However, the Compensation Committee also considers matters related to individual compensation, such as compensation for new executive hires, as well as high-level strategic issues, such as the efficacy of the Company's compensation strategy, potential modifications to that strategy, and new trends, plans, or approaches to compensation, at various meetings throughout the year. Generally, the Compensation Committee's process comprises two related elements: the determination of compensation levels and the establishment of performance objectives for the current year. For executives other than the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, the Compensation Committee solicits and considers evaluations and recommendations submitted to the Compensation Committee by the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer. In the case of the Chief Executive Officer, the evaluation of his performance is conducted by the Compensation Committee, which determines any adjustments to his compensation as well as awards to be granted. As part of its deliberations, the Compensation, tally sheets that set forth the total compensation that may become payable to executives in various hypothetical scenarios, executive and director stock ownership information, company stock performance data, analyses of historical executive compensation levels, and current Company-wide compensation levels and recommendations of the Compensation paid at other compensation Committee's compensation consultant, including analyses of executive and director compensation paid at other companies identified by the consultant.

#### Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

None of our directors who serve as a member of our Compensation Committee is, or has at any time during the past year been, one of our officers or employees. None of our executive officers currently serves, or in the past year has



served, as a member of the board of directors or compensation committee of another entity that has one or more executive officers serving on our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee.

#### Sustainability, Nomination, and Governance Committee

The responsibilities of the SNG Committee include:

- identifying, reviewing, evaluating, and communicating with candidates, including the nomination of incumbent directors for reelection and nominees recommended by stockholders, to serve on our Board of Directors;
- monitoring and evaluating the composition, organization, and size of the Board;
- reviewing and assessing the adequacy of the Company's corporate governance guidelines and, as appropriate, recommending any proposed changes to the Board for its consideration and approval;
- overseeing our environmental, social, and governance ("ESG") strategy and initiatives;
- · overseeing periodic evaluations of our Board of Directors' performance, including committees of our Board; and
- reviewing and evaluating with the Board of Directors and the Chief Executive Officer, the succession plans for the Company's executive officers.

The SNG Committee is currently composed of two directors: Mr. Boyce and Ms. Freeman. All members of the SNG Committee are independent (as independence is currently defined in Rule 5605(a)(2) of the Nasdaq listing standards). The SNG Committee met four times during the fiscal year. The Board has adopted a written SNG Committee charter that satisfies the applicable listing standards of Nasdaq and is available to stockholders on the Company's website at *ir.allbirds.com*.

#### Director Nomination Process

The SNG Committee seeks to assemble a board that, as a whole, possesses the appropriate balance of professional and industry knowledge, financial expertise, and high-level management experience necessary to oversee and direct the Company's business. To that end, the SNG Committee uses a variety of methods to identify and evaluate director nominees that will complement and strengthen the skills of other members and who also exhibit integrity, collegiality, sound business judgment, and other qualities that the SNG Committee views as critical to the effective functioning of the Board. In its evaluation of director candidates, the SNG Committee considers the current composition, organization, and size of the Board. The SNG Committee will use criteria approved by the Board, including consideration of potential conflicts of interest and director independence. The Board determines the appropriate characteristics, skills, and experience for the Board as a whole and for its individual members. The Board believes that candidates for director should have certain minimum qualifications, including the highest personal integrity and ethics, the ability to read and understand basic financial statements, the ability to understand the industry of the Company, and being over 21 years of age. In considering candidates recommended by the SNG Committee, the Board intends to consider such factors as (i) possessing relevant expertise upon which to be able to offer advice and guidance to management; (ii) having sufficient time to devote to the affairs of the Company; (iii) demonstrating excellence in his or her field; (iv) having the ability to exercise sound business judgment; (v) experience as a board member or executive officer of another publicly held company; (vi) having a diverse personal



background, perspective, and experience; and (vii) having the commitment to rigorously represent the long-term interests of the Company and its stakeholders consistent with the Company's public benefit corporation status.

Candidates for director nominees are reviewed in the context of the current composition of the Board, the operating requirements of the Company, and the long-term interests of stockholders. In conducting this assessment, the Board considers diversity (including diversity of gender, ethnic background, and country of origin), age, skills, and other factors that it deems appropriate to maintain a balance of knowledge, experience, and capability on the Board. From time to time, the Board in its discretion may change the criteria for Board membership.

#### Board and Committee Self-Evaluations

The SNG Committee annually oversees a self-evaluation of the Board to determine whether the Board and its committees are functioning effectively. As appropriate, the SNG Committee will make recommendations to the Board for areas of improvement. The self-evaluation includes evaluation of (a) the Board's and each committee's contribution as a whole and effectiveness in serving the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, (b) specific areas in which the Board and management believe that the performance of the Board and its committees could be improved, and (c) overall Board composition and makeup. The factors to be considered shall include whether the directors can and do provide the integrity, experience, judgment, commitment, skills, diversity, and expertise appropriate for the Company including in light of its public benefit purpose of environmental conservation and its commitment to sustainability. In assessing the directors, both individually and collectively, the SNG Committee may consider the current needs of the Board and the Company to maintain a balance of knowledge, experience, diversity, and capability in various areas. The SNG Committee will also consider the independence of directors and the requirements imposed by applicable law and Nasdaq listing requirements.

#### STOCKHOLDER RECOMMENDATIONS AND NOMINEES

The SNG Committee will consider director candidates recommended by stockholders. The SNG Committee does not intend to alter the manner in which it evaluates candidates, including the minimum criteria set forth above, based on whether or not the candidate was recommended by a stockholder. Stockholders who wish to recommend individuals for consideration by the SNG Committee to become nominees for election to the Board at an annual meeting of stockholders must do so by delivering a written recommendation to the SNG Committee c/o Allbirds, Inc., 730 Montgomery Street, San Francisco, CA 94111, Attn: Secretary. Each submission must set forth:

- the name and address of the stockholder on whose behalf the submission is made;
- the number and class of shares of the Company that are owned beneficially by such stockholder as of the date of the submission;
- the full name of the proposed candidate;
- a description of the proposed candidate's business experience for at least the previous five years;
- · complete biographical information for the proposed candidate; and
- a description of the proposed candidate's qualifications as a director.

Any such submission must be accompanied by the written consent of the proposed candidate to be named as a nominee and to serve as a director if elected and include any other information as required by our Bylaws.

All written submissions received from stockholders that include the information described above will be reviewed by the SNG Committee at its next appropriate meeting. If a stockholder wishes the SNG Committee to consider a director candidate for nomination at an annual meeting of the Company's stockholders, then the recommendation must be provided in accordance with the timelines and procedures set forth in the section titled "When are stockholder proposals and director nominations due for next year's annual meeting?".

The SNG Committee will consider for nomination only those individuals who possess, among other characteristics, personal and professional ethics and integrity, a background and expertise that is useful to the Company and complementary to the background of other directors, and a willingness to devote the required time to the duties and responsibilities of the Board and any committees to which he or she may be appointed, in accordance with the criteria stated in the Company's Corporate Governance Guidelines.

#### STOCKHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company's Board has adopted a formal process by which stockholders may communicate with the Board or any of its directors. Stockholders who wish to communicate with the Board or an individual director may do so by sending written communications addressed to the Secretary of Allbirds, Inc. at 730 Montgomery Street, San Francisco, CA 94111. Each communication must set forth:

- the name and address of the stockholder on whose behalf the communication is sent; and
- the number and class of shares of the Company that are owned beneficially by such stockholder as of the date of the communication.

The Secretary will review each communication. The Secretary will forward such communication to the Board or to any individual director to whom the communication is addressed unless the communication contains advertisements or solicitations or is unduly hostile, threatening, or similarly inappropriate, in which case the Secretary shall discard the communication or inform the proper authorities, as may be appropriate. All communications directed to the Compliance Officer in accordance with our Whistleblower Policy for Accounting and Auditing Matters regarding accounting, auditing, internal accounting controls, fraud, or violations of law, regulation, or policy that could impact the Company's financial statements will be promptly and directly forwarded to the Audit Committee.

#### CODE OF ETHICS

The Company has adopted the Allbirds Code of Business Conduct and Ethics that applies to all officers, directors, and employees. The Code of Business Conduct and Ethics is available on the Company's website at *ir.allbirds.com*. If the Company ever were to amend or waive any provision of its Code of Ethics that applies to the Company's principal executive officer, principal financial officer, principal accounting officer or any person performing similar functions, the Company intends to satisfy its disclosure obligations, if any, with respect to any such waiver or amendment by posting such information on its website set forth above rather than by filing a Current Report on Form 8-K.

#### CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES

Our Board of Directors has documented our governance practices by adopting Corporate Governance Guidelines to assure that the Board will have the necessary authority and practices in place to review and evaluate our business operations as needed and to make decisions that are independent of the Company's

management. The guidelines are also intended to align the interests of directors and management with those of the Company's stockholders. The Corporate Governance Guidelines set forth the practices the Board intends to follow with respect to board composition and selection including diversity, board meetings, and involvement of senior management, performance evaluation of the Chief Executive Officer and succession planning, and board committees and compensation. The Corporate Governance Guidelines may be viewed on the Company's website at *ir.allbirds.com*.

#### ANTI-HEDGING AND ANTI-PLEDGING POLICIES

Our insider trading policy and pledging policy limit the timing and types of transactions in Allbirds securities by executive officers, including our named executive officers, employees, and members of our Board of Directors. Specifically, (1) purchasing the Company's common stock on margin or holding it in a margin account at any time; (2) hedging or monetization transactions, including through the use of financial instruments such as prepaid variable forwards, equity swaps, collars, and exchange funds; (3) trading in derivative securities related to Company common stock, including publicly traded call and put options; and (4) short sales, are prohibited. Employees and members of our Board may not pledge the Company's securities as collateral for a loan, subject to limited exceptions as described below. Executive officers may not, directly or indirectly, hold the Company's securities in a margin account or otherwise pledge the Company's securities as collateral for a loan without prior approval by the Compliance Officer. An executive officer wishing to pledge the Company's securities as collateral for a loan or series of loans and clearly demonstrating the financial capacity to repay the loan(s) without resort to the pledged securities, and where the pledge represents no greater than 33% of all securities then held by the executive officer, may submit a request for pre-approval to the Compliance Officer, who will review the request and grant the exception if the Compliance Officer deems it to be in the best interest of the Company.

#### NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Our Board of Directors adopted a Non-Employee Director Compensation Policy effective November 2, 2021 (the "Effective Date"), which provides for the following compensation to directors who are not also serving as an employee or consultant to us (each such member, a "Non-Employee Director"):

#### **Annual Cash Compensation**

- 1. Annual Board Service Retainer:
  - a. All Non-Employee Directors: \$35,000
  - b. Lead Director Retainer (in addition to Non-Employee Director Service Retainer): \$15,000
- 2. Annual Committee Chair Service Retainer:
  - a. Chair of the Audit Committee: \$20,000
  - b. Chair of the Management Compensation and Leadership Committee: \$15,000
  - c. Chair of the Sustainability, Nomination and Governance Committee: \$10,000
- 3. Annual Committee Member Service Retainer (not applicable to Committee Chairs):
  - a. Member of the Audit Committee: \$10,000
  - b. Member of the Management Compensation and Leadership Committee: \$7,500
  - c. Member of the Sustainability, Nomination and Governance Committee: \$5,000

#### **Equity Compensation**



In addition to cash compensation, each Non-Employee Director is eligible to receive restricted stock unit awards granted under our 2021 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2021 Plan"), which provides, among other things, that the aggregate value of all compensation granted or paid, as applicable, to any individual for service as a Non-Employee Director with respect to any calendar year, including awards granted and cash fees paid by us to such Non-Employee Director, will not exceed (1) \$750,000 in total value or (2) in the event such Non-Employee Director is first appointed or elected to our Board of Directors during such calendar year, \$1,000,000 in total value, in each case, calculating the value of any equity awards based on the grant date fair value of such equity awards for financial reporting purposes.

*Initial Grant.* Each new Non-Employee Director elected or appointed to our Board of Directors after the Effective Date will be granted an initial, one-time restricted stock unit award with a grant date fair value of \$250,000, which will vest in three equal annual installments such that the initial award will be fully vested on the third anniversary of the grant date, subject to the Non-Employee Director's continuous service through each vesting date.

*Annual Awards.* On the date of each annual stockholder meeting of the Company held after the Effective Date, each Non-Employee Director who continues to serve as a non-employee member of the Board of Directors following such stockholder meeting (excluding any Non-Employee Director who is first appointed to or elected by the Board of Directors at such meeting) will be granted a restricted stock unit award with a grant date fair value of \$150,000, which will vest on the earlier to occur of the first anniversary of the grant date and the date of the Company's next annual stockholder meeting, subject to the Non-Employee Director's continuous service through each vesting date. With respect to a Non-Employee Director who, following the Effective Date, is first elected or appointed to the Board on a date other than the date of the Company's annual stockholder meeting and who has served for fewer than six months prior to the date of the next occurring annual stockholder meeting, such Non-Employee Director's first annual grant will be pro-rated to reflect the time between such Non-Employee Director's election or appointment date and the date of such first annual stockholder meeting.

In June 2023, the Compensation Committee approved a reduction in the grant date fair value for the 2023 annual restricted stock unit award to \$75,000.

*Change in Control.* Annual awards granted under the policy vest in full upon a Change in Control (as defined in the 2021 Plan), subject to the Non-Employee Director's continuous service through such date.

A Non-Employee Director may decline all or any portion of such Non-Employee Director's compensation by giving notice to us prior to the date cash may be paid or equity awards are to be granted, as the case may be.

#### **Reimbursement of Expenses**

In addition to the compensation outlined above, we will reimburse each Non-Employee Director for expenses incurred, if any, for attendance at each regular or special meeting of the Board of Directors and at any meeting of a committee of the Board, as well as for other reasonable expenses incurred with respect to duties as a member of the Board or any committee thereof.

#### **Director Compensation for Fiscal Year 2023**

The following table sets forth information regarding the compensation earned or paid to our directors during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, other than for Joseph Zwillinger, our former President and Chief Executive Officer, and for Timothy Brown, our Chief Innovation Officer, each of whom is also a member of our Board of Directors but did not receive any additional compensation for service as a director. The compensation of each of Mr.

Zwillinger and Mr. Brown as a named executive officer is set forth below under "Executive Compensation-Summary Compensation Table."

Name	Fees earned or paid in cash (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) <sup>(1)</sup>	Total (\$)
Neil Blumenthal	42,500	74,999	117,499
Dick Boyce	70,000	74,999	144,999
Mandy Fields	55,000	74,999	129,999
Ann Freeman	47,500	74,999	122,499
Dan Levitan	60,000	74,999	134,999
Emily Weiss <sup>(2)</sup>	20,000	_	20,000

(1) The amounts reported in this column do not reflect dollar amounts actually received by the director. Instead, the amounts represent the aggregate grant date fair value of awards computed in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718 ("ASC 718"), the basis for computing stock-based compensation in our financial statements. This calculation assumes that the Non-Employee Director will perform the requisite service for the award to vest in full as required by SEC rules. These amounts do not reflect the actual economic value that will be realized by the Non-Employee Director upon the settlement of such stock awards or the sale of the Class A common stock issuable upon the settlement of such stock awards. The assumptions we used in valuing stock awards are described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 12, 2024.

(2) Ms. Weiss did not stand for re-election at the Annual Meeting on June 9, 2023 and the fees earned or paid in cash reflects the pro rata amount earned in 2023.

The following table sets forth Class B common stock underlying outstanding stock options held by our Non-Employee Directors and unvested restricted stock unit awards held as of December 31, 2023 by each Non-Employee Director who was serving as of December 31, 2023.

Name	Option Awards Outstanding at Fiscal Year End (#)	Outstanding Restricted Stock Units at Fiscal Year End
Neil Blumenthal	37,500	58,593
Dick Boyce	_	58,593
Mandy Fields	66,916	58,593
Ann Freeman		90,280
Dan Levitan	_	58,593

#### **PROPOSAL 2:**

#### **RATIFICATION OF SELECTION OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM**

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has selected Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2024 and has further directed that management submit the selection of its independent registered public accounting firm for ratification by the stockholders at the Annual Meeting. Deloitte & Touche LLP has audited the Company's financial statements since 2016. Representatives of Deloitte & Touche LLP are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting. They will have an opportunity to make a statement if they so desire and will be available to respond to appropriate questions.

Neither the Company's Bylaws nor other governing documents or law require stockholder ratification of the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm. However, the Audit Committee of the Board is submitting the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of good corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee of the Board will reconsider whether or not to retain that firm. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee of the Board in its discretion may direct the appointment of different independent auditors at any time during the year if they determine that such a change would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders.

#### **VOTE REQUIRED**

The affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the voting power of the shares present virtually or represented by proxy and voting affirmatively or negatively (excluding abstentions and broker non-votes) on the matter at the Annual Meeting will be required to ratify the selection of Deloitte & Touche LLP.

#### INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM FEES AND SERVICES

The following table represents aggregate fees billed to the Company for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2023 and December 31, 2022, by Deloitte & Touche LLP, the Company's independent registered public accounting firm.

	Fiscal Year Ended				
Fee Category	—	2023		2022	
		(in the	ousands)		
Audit Fees <sup>(1)</sup>	\$	1,979	\$	1,630	
All Other Fees <sup>(2)</sup>	\$	2	\$	2	
Total Fees	\$	1,981	\$	1,632	

(1) Audit fees consist of fees for professional services provided in connection with the audit of our annual consolidated financial statements, reviews of our quarterly condensed consolidated financial statements, and statutory and regulatory filings or engagements.

(2) All other fees consist of a subscription to the Deloitte Accounting Research Tool.

All fees described above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee.

#### PRE-APPROVAL POLICIES AND PROCEDURES

The Audit Committee has adopted a policy and procedures for the pre-approval of audit and non-audit services rendered by the Company's independent registered public accounting firm, Deloitte & Touche LLP. The policy generally pre-approves specified services in the defined categories of audit services, audit-related services, and tax services up to specified amounts. Pre-approval may also be given as part of the Audit Committee's approval of the scope of the engagement of the independent auditor or on an individual, explicit, case-by-case basis before the independent auditor is engaged to provide each service. The pre-approval of services may be delegated to one or more of the Audit Committee's members, but the decision must be reported to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

#### THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS A VOTE IN FAVOR OF PROPOSAL 2.

#### **REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS**

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 with management of the Company. The Audit Committee has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the matters required to be discussed by the applicable requirements of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board ("PCAOB") and the SEC. The Audit Committee has also received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent registered public accounting firm required by applicable requirements of the PCAOB regarding the independent accountants' communications with the audit committee concerning independence, and has discussed with the independent registered public accounting firm the accounting firm's independence. Based on the foregoing, the Audit Committee has recommended to the Board of Directors that the audited financial statements be included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

Mandy Fields, Chair Dick Boyce Dan Levitan

The material in this report is not "soliciting material," is not deemed "filed" with the Commission and is not to be incorporated by reference in any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or the Exchange Act, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

#### **EXECUTIVE OFFICERS**

The following table identifies certain information about our executive officers as of April 25, 2024. Our executive officers are appointed by, and serve at the discretion of, our Board of Directors. There are no family relationships among any of our directors or executive officers.

Name	Age	Position
Ann Mitchell	47	Chief Financial Officer
Joe Vernachio <sup>(1)</sup>	59	President, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary

(1) On March 7, 2024, Mr. Zwillinger resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer, effective March 15, 2024. On March 9, 2024, Mr. Vernachio was appointed as President, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary, effective March 15, 2024.

The biography of Mr. Vernachio is set forth in "Proposal 1: Election of Directors" above.

*Ann Mitchell.* Ms. Mitchell has served as our Chief Financial Officer since April 2023. From June 2021 to March 2023, Ms. Mitchell served as the Vice President of Finance & Insights for Gymshark, a fitness apparel and accessories brand, manufacturer, and retailer, where she led the financial strategy for the North American region, oversaw the finance, analytics, and research functions, and was a senior member of the leadership team. Prior to Gymshark, Ms. Mitchell spent almost ten years (May 2011 to March 2021) with adidas, a global footwear and apparel company, where she served in progressively senior financial leadership roles. In her most recent role at adidas, she was the Senior Vice President of Finance (CFO) for adidas North America (August 2017 to March 2021), where she was a key member of the senior leadership team and was responsible for driving the strategic growth of the region. Her responsibilities included leading the finance, demand planning, accounting, and controlling functions. Ms. Mitchell holds a B.A. in Economics from the University of Puget Sound and an M.B.A. and an M.Sc. in Finance from the University of Denver Daniels College of Business.

#### EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, our named executive officers were:

- · Joseph Zwillinger, former President and Chief Executive Officer and former Co-Chief Executive Officer
- · Timothy Brown, Chief Innovation Officer and former Co-Chief Executive Officer
- Ann Mitchell, Chief Financial Officer
- · Joe Vernachio, President and Chief Executive Officer and former Chief Operating Officer

In May 2023, Mr. Brown transitioned from Co-Chief Executive Officer to Co-Founder and Chief Innovation Officer, a non-executive role. In May 2023, Mr Zwillinger transitioned from Co-Chief Executive Officer to Chief Executive Officer, and in March 2024, Mr. Zwillinger resigned as President and Chief

Executive Officer. Mr. Zwillinger and Mr. Brown will each continue to serve the Company as a director. In March 2024, Mr. Vernachio was appointed as President, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary. As part of Mr. Vernachio's appointment, the Company entered into a new offer letter with Mr. Vernachio, see the section titled "Employment Agreements with our Named Executive Officers" for further description of the new offer letter.

As an "emerging growth company" under the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act (the "JOBS Act"), we are permitted to rely on exemptions from certain disclosure requirements that are applicable to other public companies that are not emerging growth companies. Accordingly, we have not included in this section a compensation discussion and analysis of our executive compensation programs or tabular compensation information other than the "Summary Compensation Table" and the "Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End" table below. In addition, for so long as we are an emerging growth company, we will not be required to submit certain executive compensation matters to our stockholders for advisory votes, such as "say-on-pay" and "sayon-frequency" votes.

#### **Summary Compensation Table**

The following table presents all of the compensation awarded to or earned by or paid to our named executive officers during the fiscal years indicated.

Non Fauity Ind

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)	Bonus (\$)	Stock Awards (\$) <sup>(4)</sup>	Option Awards (\$)	Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation (\$)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Total (\$)
Joseph Zwillinger Chief Executive Officer <sup>(1)</sup>	2023	382,693	172,211 <sup>(7)</sup>	_		375,000 <sup>(10)</sup>	12,792 <sup>(8)</sup>	942,696
	2022	365,462		2,012,471	2,059,226	_	12,051	4,449,210
Timothy Brown Chief Innovation Officer <sup>(2)</sup>	2023	350,000	78,750 <sup>(7)</sup>	—	—	—	12,735 <sup>8)</sup>	441,485
	2022	365,462		2,012,471	2,059,226	—	12,033	4,449,192
Ann Mitchell <sup>(3)</sup> Chief Financial Officer	2023	252,404	62,481(9)	1,034,198	919,040	-	18,483 <sup>(8)</sup>	2,286,606
Joe Vernachio Chief Operating Officer <sup>(4)</sup>	2023	375,000	84,375(7)	1,128,965	_	_	19,575 <sup>(8)</sup>	1,607,915
	2022	370,577		864,457	205,783 <sup>(5)</sup>	—	6,923	1,447,740

(1) In March 2024, Mr. Zwillinger resigned as President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

(2) In May 2023, Mr. Brown transitioned from Co-Chief Executive Officer to Co-Founder and Chief Innovation Officer, a non-executive role.

(3) Ms. Mitchell joined us in April 2023, and as such the amounts for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 reflect the pro rata portion earned by or paid to Ms. Mitchell.

(4) In March 2024, Mr. Vernachio was appointed as President, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary of the Company

(5) Amount reported for Mr. Vernachio represents the incremental fair value of his stock options repriced during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, measured pursuant to ASC 718, the basis for computing the stock-based compensation in our financial statements.

(6) Except as otherwise noted, amounts reported represent the aggregate grant date fair value of stock awards and stock options granted in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, measured pursuant to ASC 718 the basis for computing stock-based compensation in our financial statements. This calculation assumes that the named executive officer will perform the requisite service for the award to vest in full as required by SEC rules. These amounts do not reflect the actual economic value that will be realized by the named executive officer upon the settlement of such stock awards of the sale of the Class A common stock issuable upon the settlement of such stock awards. In 2022, Messrs. Brown and Zwillinger were granted certain performance-based RSUs which vest, if at all, according to relative total shareholder return goals. Please see the section titled "Equity Compensation - Founders' Grants" below for further information. The grant date fair value of these performance-based RSUs is calculated based on a Monte-Carlo simulation. The grant date fair values of these performance conditions, and therefore have no maximum grant date fair values that differ from the grant date fair values presented in the table. The assumptions we used in valuing stock awards are described in Note 2 to our consolidated financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 12, 2024.

For Messrs. Zwillinger, Brown and Vernachio, amounts reported represent a discretionary bonus related to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. For additional detail, please see "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation."

(8) For Mr. Zwillinger, amount reported represents \$12,792 in company contributions under our 401(k) plan paid by the Company for the benefit of Mr. Zwillinger. For Mr. Brown, amount reported represents \$12,735 in company contributions under our 401(k) plan paid by the Company for the benefit of Mr. Brown. For Ms. Mitchell, amount reported represents \$8,654 in company contributions under our 401(k) plan paid by the Company for the benefit of Mr. Brown. For Ms. Mitchell, amount reported represents \$19,575 in company contributions under our 401(k) plan paid by the Company for the benefit of Mr. Vernachio.
 (9) Amount reported for Ms. Mitchell represents (a \$12,000 signing bonus and (i) a \$50,481 discretionary bonus related to fiscal year ended December 31, 2023. For additional detail, please see "Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation."

(10)Amount reported for Mr. Zwillinger represents a performance-based bonus earned based on achievement of certain goals related to the Company's strategic transformation plan.

#### Narrative to the Summary Compensation Table

#### Annual Base Salary

Our named executive officers receive a base salary to compensate them for services rendered to us. The base salary payable to each named executive officer is intended to provide a fixed component of compensation reflecting the executive's skill set, experience, role, and responsibilities. Our Board approved an annual base salary for each of Messrs. Zwillinger and Brown of \$415,000, effective June 1, 2022, and an annual base salary for Mr. Vernachio of \$375,000, effective March 1, 2022. In March 2023, the Compensation Committee approved a reduction in the annual base salary for each of Messrs. Zwillinger and Brown to \$375,000 effective March 5, 2023. As part of Mr. Brown's transition from Co-Chief Executive Officer to Chief Innovation Officer in May 2023, Mr. Brown's annual base salary was reduced to \$325,000. Ms. Mitchell joined us in April 2023 and received an annualized base salary of \$375,000.

#### Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation

In addition to base salaries, our executive officers are eligible to receive performance-based cash bonuses, which are designed to provide appropriate incentives to our executives to achieve defined performance goals. For our fiscal year 2023, the target bonus for Mr. Zwillinger was 100% of his annual base salary with a maximum bonus opportunity of 150% of annual base salary, for each of Messrs. Brown and Vernachio, the target bonus was 45% of their annual base salary with a maximum bonus opportunity of 90% of annual base salary, and for Ms. Mitchell, the target bonus was 40% of her annual base salary with a maximum bonus opportunity of 90% of annual base salary. The performance goals for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 focused on net revenue, adjusted EBITDA, and sustainability targets, with a weighting of 20%, 60% and 20% assigned to each target, respectively, with achievement of the adjusted EBITDA target as a requirement for payout of the bonus. The amounts of any annual incentives earned are determined after the end of the year, based on the achievement of the designated corporate and individual performance objectives. In early 2024, our Compensation Committee reviewed percentage achievement against such goals and determined that the adjusted EBITDA target was not met. However, in recognition of the management team's significant work and execution of the first year of our strategic transformation plan, and in an effort to continue to incentivize the management team, the Compensation Committee approved a discretionary bonus in an amount equal to 45% of the original target bonus amount for Mr. Zwillinger and 50% of the original target bonus amount for Ms. Mitchell and Messrs. Brown and Vernachio for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023.

To incentivize the execution of certain objectives under the Company's strategic transformation plan announced in March 2023, the Compensation Committee approved a performance-based bonus program for Mr. Zwillinger in August 2023 (the "Transformation Bonus"). Under the Transformation Bonus, Mr. Zwillinger was eligible to receive up to \$375,000 based on the achievement of three performance objectives:

- \$125,000 payable if three distribution agreements to shift current international regions to a distributor model were executed on or before March 31, 2024;
- \$125,000 payable if the Company achieved a year end cash and cash equivalents balance of \$100 million or greater on the Company's balance sheet for fiscal year 2023; and
- Up to \$125,000 payable as follows: (i) \$75,000 payable if the Company achieved a year end cash and cash equivalents balance of \$110 million to \$119.99 million on the Company's balance sheet for fiscal year

2023 or (ii) \$125,000 payable if the Company achieved a year end cash and equivalents balance greater than \$119.99 million on the Company's balance sheet for fiscal year 2023.

In early 2024, the Compensation Committee reviewed Mr. Zwillinger's performance against the above performance objectives and approved a payout of \$375,000 for Mr. Zwillinger.

#### Equity-Based Awards

Our equity-based incentive awards granted to our named executive officers are designed to align the interests of our named executive officers with those of our stockholders. Vesting of equity awards is generally tied to each officer's continuous service with us and serves as an additional retention measure. Our executives generally are awarded an initial new hire grant upon commencement of employment. Additional grants may occur periodically in order to specifically incentivize executives with respect to achieving certain corporate goals or to reward executives for performance.

Prior to our IPO, we granted equity awards pursuant to our 2015 Equity Incentive Plan (the "2015 Plan"), and following the closing of our IPO, we grant all equity awards pursuant to the 2021 Plan. Following the adoption of our 2021 Plan, no further grants were permitted to be made our 2015 Plan, though existing awards remain outstanding under the 2015 Plan and continue to vest in accordance with their terms.

#### 2023 Grants

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, we granted annual refresh restricted stock unit awards ("RSUs") under our 2021 Plan to Mr. Vernachio covering 500,000 shares of our Class A common stock. One-twelfth of these RSUs vested on December 1, 2023, and the remaining RSUs vest in equal quarterly installments for the following three years, subject to continued service through the applicable vesting date. In addition, during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023, we granted additional retention-related RSUs under our 2021 Plan to Mr. Vernachio covering 195,402 shares of our Class A common stock. Fifty percent of these RSUs vested on June 1, 2023, and the remaining RSUs vest in three equal six-month increments thereafter.

#### Founders' Grants

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022, our Compensation Committee and our Board of Directors worked closely with its compensation consultant, Compensia, to design equity incentives for Messrs. Brown and Zwillinger that encouraged their retention for a multi-year period and significantly aligned their compensation with the long-term interests of our stockholders by requiring, among other things, the achievement of sustained stock price targets. The size of the awards was determined after consideration of similar equity awards to founders of privately held and publicly traded companies that are serving in executive positions.

For each of Messrs. Brown and Zwillinger, the equity incentive is comprised of (1) an option to purchase 911,162 shares of our Class A common stock and (2) a target amount of 393,830 performance-based RSUs ("PSUs"), both of which were granted under our 2021 Plan. One-fourth of the options will vest on June 1, 2023, and the remaining options vest in equal monthly installments for the following three years, subject to continued service to the Company through the applicable vesting date. The options were granted at an exercise price of \$4.68, which our Board of Directors determined was equal to the fair market value of a share of our Class A common stock on the date of the grant.

The PSUs are earned and vest based on the Company's total shareholder return ("TSR") relative to the constituents of the S&P Consumer Discretionary index (the "Index"). TSR will be measured over one-, two-, and three-year periods, with each period starting on June 1, 2022 (each referred to as a "Performance Period"), with 1/3 of the PSUs (each of the third referred to as a "PSU Target") eligible to be earned in each of the three Performance Periods. At the end of each Performance Period, any earned PSUs fully vest, and any unearned PSUs are forfeited. For each Performance Period, the following chart presents the tiers of PSUs earned multiples relative to the PSU Target based on the Company's percentile rank relative of TSR to the Index (with linear interpolation in between tiers).

Percentile rank of the Company's TSR compared to the Index <sup>(1)</sup>	PSU earned multiple relative to PSU Target
Below 25 <sup>th</sup> percentile	None
25 <sup>th</sup> percentile	50% of PSU Target
55 <sup>th</sup> percentile	100% of PSU Target
At or above 75 <sup>th</sup> percentile	150% of PSU Target

(1) In the event that absolute TSR is negative during a Performance Period, the PSU earned multiple is capped at 100% of PSU Target.

In the event that Messrs. Brown and Zwillinger are no longer providing service to the Company, except for in connection with a change in control, during a Performance Period, all unearned PSUs will be forfeited. In the event of a change in control, the calculation of any earned PSUs will be measured based on the TSR as of the change in control date, and all earned PSUs convert to time-based RSUs that will vest quarterly over the remaining Performance Period. See the section titled "Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control" for further description of vesting acceleration under a termination or change in control.

For the Performance Period ending May 31, 2023, the Compensation Committee determined that PSU Target for the Performance Period was not achieved and no PSUs were earned by Messrs. Brown and Zwillinger.

#### **Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End**

The following table sets forth certain information about outstanding equity awards granted to our named executive officers that remain outstanding as of December 31, 2023.

		Option Awards <sup>(1)</sup>				Stock Awards <sup>(1)</sup>				
Name	Grant Date	Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#) exercisable	Number of securities underlying unexercised options (#) unexercisable	Option exercise price <sup>(1)</sup> (5)	Option expiration date	Number of shares or units of stock that have not vested (#)	Market value of shares of units of stock that have not vested <sup>(6)</sup>	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Number of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (#)	Equity Incentive Plan Awards: Market or Payout Value of Unearned Shares, Units or Other Rights That Have Not Vested (S) <sup>(6)</sup>	
Joseph Zwillinger	10/9/2019(3)	1,875,000(4)	-	5.09	10/8/2029		_	_	_	
	5/22/2022(12)	-	—	_	—	_	—	262,554 <sup>(11)</sup>	321,629(11)	
	5/23/2022(5)	341,683	569,479	4.68	5/22/2032	_	_	_	-	
Timothy Brown	10/9/2019 <sup>(3)</sup>	625,000 <sup>(4)</sup>	-	5.09	10/8/2029	—	—	_	_	
	5/22/2022 <sup>(12)</sup>	—	_	—	—	—	—	262,554 <sup>(11)</sup>	321,629 <sup>(11)</sup>	
	5/23/2022 <sup>(5)</sup>	341,683	569,479	4.68	5/22/2032	_	_	_	_	
Ann Mitchell	5/1/2023(7)	—	1,600,000	1.25	5/1/2033	—	—	—	—	
	5/1/2023(8)	_	_	_	_	827,358	1,013,514	_	_	
Joe Vernachio	6/26/2021 <sup>(9)</sup>	265,625	159,375	4.39	6/25/2031	—	—	—	-	
	5/22/2022(10)	—	—	_	_	98,458	120,611	—	—	
	1/18/2023 <sup>(12)</sup> 8/16/2023 <sup>(13)</sup>	_	_	_	_	195,402 458,332	239,367 561,457	_	_	

- (1) With the exception of Messrs. Zwillinger and Brown's option awards on October 9, 2019 and Mr. Vernachio's options award on June 26, 2021, which were granted under the 2015 Plan, all other option awards listed in the table were granted under our 2021 Plan; all of the RSUs and PSUs listed in the table were granted under our 2021 Plan. Certain of the equity awards are subject to vesting acceleration as described under "—Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control." Option awards granted under our 2021 Plan and 2015 Plan are exercisable for our Class A common stock and Class B common stock, respectively.
- (2) All of the option awards listed in the table were granted with a per share exercise price equal to or above the fair market value of one share of our common stock on the date of grant, as determined in good faith by our Board of Directors; option awards that have been repriced have a per share fair market value that was equal to the closing market price of our Class A common stock on May 20, 2022, the repricing date.
- (3) The shares subject to this option may be exercised at any time, subject to our repurchase right with respect to any then-unvested shares at the time of termination. Such repurchase right lapses over 48 equal monthly installments beginning on October 1, 2019, subject to the named executive officer's continuous service to us through each applicable vesting date.
- (4) Because this option is exercisable immediately upon grant and subject to a repurchase right in favor of us which lapses as the option vests, these options reflect the number of options held by the named executive officer that were exercisable and vested as of December 31, 2023.
- (5) One-fourth of the shares subject to this option vested on June 1, 2023, and the remainder of the shares vest in 36 successive equal monthly installments thereafter, subject to the holder's continuous service with us.
- (6) The market value of our Class A common stock is based on the closing price of our Class A common stock on the Nasdaq Global Select Market on December 29, 2023, which was \$1.225.
- (7) One-fourth of the restricted stock units vest on June 1, 2024, and the remainder of the shares vest in 12 successive equal quarterly installments thereafter, subject to the holder's continuous service with us.

- (8) One-fourth of the shares subject to this option vest on June 1, 2024, and the remainder of the shares vest in 12 successive equal quarterly installments thereafter, subject to the holder's continuous service with us.
- (9) One-fourth of the shares subject to this option vested on June 1, 2022, and the remainder of the shares vest in 36 equal monthly installments thereafter, subject to the holder's continuous service with us. As discussed under "—Options Repricing," the exercise price for this option grant reflects that it was repriced from an original exercise price of \$8.43.
- (10) One-twelfth of the restricted stock units vested on September 1, 2022, and one-twelfth of the restricted stock units shall vest in equal quarterly installment thereafter, subject to the holder's continuous service with us.
- (11) The number and market value of the PSUs that vest based upon the achievement of relative total shareholder return goals during specified measurement periods reflect threshold performance. The actual numbers of shares that will be distributed with respect to the PSUs are not yet determinable.
- (12) One-half of the restricted stock units vested on June 1, 2023, and the remainder of the shares vest in three successive equal six-month installments thereafter, subject to the holder's continuous service with us..
- (13) One-twelfth of the restricted stock units vested on December 1, 2023, and the remainder of the shares vest in 12 successive equal quarterly installments thereafter, subject to the holder's continuous service with us.

## Health and Welfare, Retirement Benefits, and Perquisites

## Health and Welfare

All of our current named executive officers are eligible to participate in our employee benefit plans, including our medical, dental, vision, disability, and life insurance plans, in each case on the same basis as all of our other employees.

# 401(k) Plan

Our named executive officers are eligible to participate in a defined contribution retirement plan that provides eligible U.S. employees with an opportunity to save for retirement on a tax advantaged basis. Eligible employees may defer eligible compensation on a pre-tax or after-tax (Roth) basis, up to the statutorily prescribed annual limits on contributions under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). The 401(k) plan is intended to be qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code with the 401(k) plan's related trust intended to be tax exempt under Section 501(a) of the Code.

For the 2023 plan year, we made a matching contribution equal to 100% of participant deferrals on the first 3% of their eligible compensation and 50% of the next 2% of their eligible compensation, subject to a \$22,500 maximum (plus \$7,500 for employees age 50 and over).

## Perquisites

In general, we do not offer perquisites to our named executive officers.

## **Employment Agreements with our Named Executive Officers**

Each of our named executive officers is employed at-will. We have not entered into employment agreements with Messrs. Zwillinger and Brown, but we have entered into offer letter agreements with Ms. Mitchell and Mr. Vernachio, the material terms of which are summarized below. In addition, each of our named executive officers has executed our standard form of confidential information and inventions assignment agreement and may become eligible for severance or change in control benefits under our Severance and Change in Control Plan, as described below under "—Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control."

## Ann Mitchell

In March 2023, we entered into an offer letter with Ms. Mitchell that governs the terms of her current employment with us. Pursuant to the offer letter, Ms. Mitchel is entitled to an initial annual base salary of \$375,000, which is subject to adjustment at the discretion of our Board, and an annual bonus of up to 80% of her annual base salary



with a target equal to 40% of her annual base salary to be awarded based upon the achievement of individual and company performance goals as determined by our Board.

In connection with the start of her employment with us, our Board granted Ms. Mitchell an option to purchase 1,600,000 shares of our Class A common stock with an exercise price of \$1.25 and a RSU award of 827,358 shares of our Class A common stock, both subject to the terms of our 2021 Plan and an applicable award agreement. The options vest with respect to 25% of the shares subject to the option on June 1, 2024, and with respect to the remaining shares subject to the option, in 12 equal quarterly installments thereafter. The RSUs vest with respect to 25% of the shares subject to the remaining shares subject to the remaining shares subject to the RSUs, in 12 equal quarterly installments thereafter.

Pursuant to Ms. Mitchell's offer letter, she received a one-time, signing bonus equal to \$12,000 and up to \$10,000 in reimbursable relocation expenses.

## Joe Vernachio

In May 2021, we entered into an offer letter with Mr. Vernachio that previously governed the terms of his employment with us (the "2021 offer letter"). Pursuant to the 2021 offer letter, Mr. Vernachio was entitled to an initial annual base salary of \$350,000, which was subject to adjustment at the discretion of our Board, and an annual bonus of up to 70% of his annual base salary with a target equal to 35% of his annual base salary to be awarded based upon the achievement of individual and company performance goals as determined by our Board. Mr. Vernachio's annual bonus target for 2023 was increased by the Compensation Committee to a target bonus equal to 45% of his annual base salary and a maximum of 90% of his annual base salary.

In connection with the start of his employment with us, our Board granted Mr. Vernachio an option to purchase 425,000 shares of our Class B common stock with an exercise price of \$8.43 per share, pursuant to the terms of our 2015 Plan and an applicable stock option agreement. The options vested with respect to 25% of the shares subject to the option on June 1, 2022, and with respect to the remaining shares subject to the option, in equal monthly installments thereafter for a 36-month period. The options were repriced in May 2022 on a one-for-one basis to \$4.39 per share.

In addition, under the terms of Mr. Vernachio's 2021 offer letter, his option grant provided for in the 2021 offer letter will vest in full if, within 30 days before the execution of a definitive agreement providing for a change in control (as defined in the 2015 Plan) or 12 months following a change in control, his employment with us is terminated without cause (as defined in the 2021 offer letter) or he terminates his employment for good reason (as defined in the 2021 offer letter), and such separation is not a result of his death or disability.

In March 2024, we entered into a new offer letter with Mr. Vernachio that governs his new role as the Company's President and Chief Executive Officer (the "2024 offer letter"). Pursuant to the 2024 offer letter, Mr. Vernachio is entitled to an initial annual base salary of \$500,000, which is subject to adjustment at the discretion of our Board, and an annual bonus with a target equal to 80% of his annual base salary to be awarded based upon the achievement of individual and company performance goals as determined by our Board.

In connection with his appointment, our Board granted to Mr. Vernachio (i) an award of RSUs with a grant date value of \$600,000, and (ii) an award of PSUs with a grant date value of \$600,000 (the "PSU Award"). The RSUs vest with respect to 1/12th of the shares on the three-month anniversary of the grant date, and with respect to the remaining shares subject to the RSUs, in 11 equal quarterly installments thereafter.

The PSU Award will become eligible to vest upon the attainment of certain stock price goals, as described below. None of the PSUs vest purely based on continued employment. The dollar value of the PSU Award will be



converted into a number of Shares of Common Stock by dividing (i) the value of the PSU Award, by (ii) the average closing price of Shares on the Nasdaq Stock Market for the 30 trading days immediately prior to the Grant Date.

The PSUs are eligible to vest based on the Company's stock price performance over a three-year performance period beginning on March 15, 2024 (the "Grant Date") and ending March 15, 2027. The PSUs are divided into two tranches. Each tranche is eligible to vest based on the achievement of a stock price goal (each, a "Company Stock Price Target"), measured based on the average of the closing prices of the Common Stock over a consecutive 30 trading day period during the performance period as set forth below. This measurement period is designed to reward Mr. Vernachio only if the Company achieves sustained growth in the Company's stock price.

The following table shows a summary of each tranche, including the percentage of PSUs eligible to vest per tranche and the applicable Company Stock Price Target.

Tranche	Company Stock Price Target	Percentage of PSUs eligible to vest
1	\$2.00	50% of PSUs
2	\$3.00	50% of PSUs

Upon achievement of a Company Stock Price Target, the PSUs in the applicable tranche will vest 50% upon the certification of achievement by the Management Compensation and Leadership Committee of the Board and 50% on the one year anniversary of such certification, subject in each case to Mr. Vernachio's continued service as CEO through the applicable vesting date.

If the average closing price of the Common Stock fails to reach the Company Stock Price Target for a particular tranche of the PSUs over a consecutive 30 trading day period during the performance period, or if Mr. Vernachio terminates service to the Company as CEO before achieving the Company Stock Price Target, no portion of that tranche will vest and unearned shares are forfeited. The Company Stock Price Targets and number of Shares underlying the PSUs will be adjusted to reflect any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, reorganizations, reclassifications, or similar event under the Company's 2021 Equity Incentive Plan.

In the event of a change in control (as such term is defined in the Company's 2021 Equity Incentive Plan) of the Company before the end of the performance period, the price in the change in control will be used to determine performance versus the Company Stock Price Targets for each tranche. For each tranche, if the change in control price exceeds the respective tranche's Company Stock Price Target, all PSUs subject to that tranche shall be earned. PSUs earned based on the change in control price will vest immediately prior to the closing of the change in control and any unearned PSUs will be forfeited.

# Potential Payments upon Termination or Change in Control

Each of our named executive officers is eligible to participate in our Severance and Change in Control Plan (the "Severance Plan") as described immediately below, and each of our named executive officers entered into a Severance Plan participation agreement.

Pursuant to our Severance Plan and an applicable participation agreement thereunder, each of our named executive officers would be eligible to receive certain benefits in the event such officer is involuntarily terminated by us without cause (excluding an involuntary termination due to death or disability) or voluntarily resigns for good reason (as each such term is defined in the Severance Plan) (such termination referred to as a "covered termination"), and enhanced benefits in the event that such covered termination occurs during the period commencing three months prior to, and ending 12 months following, the closing of a change in control (as defined in the 2021 Plan). Such benefits are contingent on the officer's execution and non-revocation of a general release of claims in favor of the company and certain related parties, unless otherwise stated, and satisfaction of other terms and conditions as

described in the Severance Plan and the applicable participation agreement. Any eligibility for benefits under the Severance Plan supersedes and replaces any other plan, policy or practice providing for severance benefits to which an officer may have otherwise been previously entitled.

If such covered termination occurs prior to (i) the officer's completion of 12 months of continuous service with us and (ii) a change in control, he will be eligible to receive a cash payment in an amount equal to six months of his annual base salary and continuation of health benefits for himself and his eligible dependents under COBRA (or an equivalent taxable cash amount) for up to six months.

If such covered termination occurs during the period commencing three months prior to, and ending 12 months following, the closing of a change in control, each officer will instead be eligible to receive a lump-sum cash payment equal to the sum of (i) 12 months of the officer's then-current base salary (without giving effect to any reduction triggering good reason), (ii) a prorated portion of such officer's target bonus for the year in which the covered termination occurs, assuming that any articulated performance goals are achieved at 100% of target, and (iii) continuation of health benefits for the officer and his eligible dependents under COBRA (or an equivalent taxable cash amount) for up to 12 months following the covered termination. Further, the vesting and exercisability of each equity award held by such officer that is subject to time-based vesting shall become fully vested (and, if applicable, fully exercisable); any equity awards subject to performance-vesting shall vest and become exercisable according to the terms of such individual award agreements.

In addition, if, in connection with our change in control, the succeeding or acquiring entity does not assume or continue any outstanding, unvested equity award, and such officer's continuing employment has not terminated as of immediately prior to the effective time of such change in control, all such equity awards will become fully vested (and, as applicable, fully exercisable), subject to consummation of the change in control transaction, with performance-based awards accelerating as if achieved at 100% of the target level. Such acceleration does not require a covered termination.

# **Clawback Policy**

In 2023, Nasdaq adopted new listing standards addressing policy requirements for the mandatory recovery of executive incentive-based compensation by issuers with securities listed on the exchange. Following the adoption of these Nasdaq listing standards, the Board approved and adopted the Allbirds, Inc. Incentive Compensation Recoupment Policy, which adheres to the listing standards of the Nasdaq and the rules of the SEC. In the event the Company is required to prepare an accounting restatement, the policy provides for the mandatory recovery of erroneously awarded incentive-based compensation received by current or former executive officers during the coverage period to the extent that compensation was based on the attainment of a financial reporting measure. Under the policy, the Compensation Committee will require recoupment if it determines that incentive-based compensation received by an executive exceeds the amount of incentive-based compensation that otherwise would have been received, had it been calculated based on the restated amounts.

## **Equity Compensation Plan Information**

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plan information as of December 31, 2023. Information is included for equity compensation plans approved by our stockholders. We do not have any equity compensation plans not approved by our stockholders:

Plan Category	Class of Common Stock	Number of Securities to be Issued Upon Exercise of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights (a) <sup>(1)</sup>	Weighted-Average Exercise Price of Outstanding Options, Warrants and Rights (b) <sup>(3)</sup>	Number of Securities Remaining Available for Future Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans (Excluding Securities Reflected in Column (a)) (c)
Equity plans approved by stockholders	Class A	5,043,892	\$ 2.89	16,401,944 <sup>(4)(5)</sup>
	Class B <sup>(2)</sup>	8,206,091	\$ 4.04	_
Equity plans not approved by stockholders		—	—	—

(1) Includes the 2021 Plan but does not include future rights to purchase Class A common stock under our 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the "2021 ESPP"), which depend on a number of factors described in our 2021 ESPP and will not be determined until the end of the applicable purchase period.

(2) Includes the 2015 Plan.

(3) The weighted-average exercise price excludes any outstanding restricted stock units, which have no exercise price.

(4) Includes the 2021 Plan and 2021 ESPP. Stock options, restricted stock units, or other stock awards granted under the 2015 Plan that are forfeited, terminated, expired, or repurchased become available for issuance under the 2021 Plan. Following the adoption of the 2021 Plan, no additional stock awards have been or will be granted under the 2015 Plan.

(5) The 2021 Plan provides that the number of shares of our Class A common stock reserved for issuance under the 2021 Plan will automatically increase on January 1 of each year for a period of 10 years, beginning on January 1, 2022 and continuing through (and including) January 1, 2031, in an amount equal to 4% of the total number of shares of our common stock (both Class A and Class B) outstanding on December 31 of the immediately preceding year, except that, before the date of any such increase, our Board of Directors may determine that the increase for such year will be a lesser number of shares. In addition, the 2021 ESPP provides that the number of shares of our Class A common stock reserved for issuance will automatically increase on January 1 of each year for a period of 10 years, beginning on January 1, 2022 and continuing through (and including) January 1, 2031, by the lesser of (1) 1% of the total number of shares of our common stock (both Class A and Class B) outstanding on December 31 of the immediately preceding year and (2) 2,850,000 shares, except that, before the date of any such increase, our Board of Directors may determine that such increase will be less than the amount set forth in clauses (1) and (2). Accordingly, on January 1, 2024 the number of shares of Class A common stock available for issuance under the 2021 Plan and the 2021 ESPP increased by 6,203,785 shares and 1,550,946 shares, respectively, pursuant to these provisions. These increases are not reflected in the table above.

# SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the ownership of the Company's common stock as of March 31, 2024 by:

- each person or group of affiliated persons known by us to beneficially own greater than 5% of our Class A or Class B common stock;
- each of our named executive officers and directors; and
- all directors and officers as a group.

We have determined beneficial ownership in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC, and the information is not necessarily indicative of beneficial ownership for any other purpose. Except as indicated by the footnotes below, we believe, based on information furnished to us, that the persons and entities named in the table below have sole voting and sole investment power with respect to all shares that they beneficially own, subject to applicable community property laws.

Applicable percentage ownership is based on 103,214,282 shares of Class A common stock and 52,547,761 shares of Class B common stock outstanding as of March 31, 2024. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of such person, we deemed to be outstanding all shares subject to options held by the person that are currently exercisable, or exercisable or restricted stock unit awards that would vest based on service-based vesting conditions within 60 days of March 31, 2024. However, except as described above, we did not deem such shares outstanding for the purpose of computing the percentage ownership of any other person.

Unless otherwise indicated, the address for each beneficial owner listed in the table below is c/o Allbirds, Inc., 730 Montgomery Street San Francisco, CA 94111.

	Class A Comm	on Stock	Class B Com	% of Total Voting		
Name	Shares	%	Shares	%	Power <sup>†</sup>	
5% Stockholders						
Entities affiliated with Maveron <sup>(1)</sup>		—	16,824,330	32.0	26.8	
Entities affiliated with Fidelity <sup>(2)</sup>	9,926,896	9.6	_		1.6	
Entities affiliated with BlackRock, Inc. <sup>(3)</sup>	6,603,398	6.4	_	_	1.1	
Entities affiliated with The Vanguard Group <sup>(4)</sup>	5,615,647	5.4	_	—	*	
Named Executive Officers and Directors						
Joseph Zwillinger <sup>(5)</sup>	436,595	*	12,810,945	23.5	19.8	
Timothy Brown <sup>(6)</sup>	486,595	*	13,955,925	26.2	22.0	
Ann Mitchell <sup>(7)</sup>	16,743	*	—		*	
Joe Vernachio <sup>(8)</sup>	127,625	*	309,895	*	*	
Neil Blumenthal <sup>(9)</sup>	30,487	*	153,105	*	*	
Dick Boyce <sup>(10)</sup>	30,487	*	1,850,050	3.5	2.9	
Mandy Fields <sup>(11)</sup>	30,487	*	75,000	*	*	
Ann Freeman <sup>(12)</sup>	15,841	*	_		*	
Dan Levitan <sup>(13)</sup>	130,487	*	16,824,330	32.0	26.8	
All directors and executive officers as a group $(9 \text{ persons})^{(14)}$	1,305,347	1.3	45,979,250	82.9	70.0	

# \* Less than one percent.

\* Represents the voting power with respect to all shares of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock, voting together as a single class. Each share of Class A common stock is entitled to one vote per share, and each share of Class B common stock is entitled to 10 votes per share. The Class A common stock and Class B common stock vote together on all matters (including the election of directors) submitted to a vote of stockholders, except under limited circumstances.

- (1) Based solely on Schedule 13G/A filed on February 10, 2023 by entities associated with Maveron. Consists as of December 31, 2022 of (a) 11,587,344 shares of Class B common stock held by Maveron Equity Partners V, L.P. ("Maveron Equity Partners V"), (b) 3,798,726 shares of Class B common stock held by MEP Associates V, L.P. ("MEP Associates V"), and (c) 1,438,260 shares of Class B common stock held by Maveron V Entrepreneurs". Maveron V Entrepreneurs". Maveron General Partner V, LLC ("Maveron General Partner V") is the general partner of each of Maveron Equity Partners V, MEP Associates V, and Maveron V Entrepreneurs. Dan Levitan, Jason Stoffer, and David Wu are the managing members of Maveron General Partner V and share voting and investment power over the shares held by Maveron Equity Partners V, MEP Associates V, and Maveron V Entrepreneurs. The address for each person and entity listed above is c/o Maveron LLC, 411 1st Avenue South, Suite 600, Seattle, Washington 98104.
- (2) Based solely on Schedule 13G filed on February 9, 2024 by FMR LLC and Abigail P. Johnson. FMR LLC has the sole voting power with respect to 9,926,896 shares of Class A common stock and sole dispositive power with respect to 9,926,896 shares of Class A common stock. Abigail P. Johnson is a Director, the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of FMR LLC. Members of the Johnson family, including Abigail P. Johnson, are the predominant owners, directly or through trusts, of Series B voting common shares of FMR LLC, representing 49% of the voting power of FMR LLC. The Johnson family group and all other Series B shareholders have entered into a shareholders' voting agreement under which all Series B voting common shares will be voted in accordance with the majority vote of Series B voting common shares. Accordingly, through their ownership of voting common shares and the execution of the shareholders' voting agreement, members of the Johnson family may be deemed, under the Investment Company Act of 1940, to form a controlling group with respect to FMR LLC. The address for each person and entity listed above is 245 Summer Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02210.
- (3) Based solely on Schedule 13G/A filed on January 29, 2024 by BlackRock, Inc., which is a parent holding company or control person with sole voting with respect to 6,481,401 shares of Class A common stock and sole dispositive power with respect to 6,603,398 shares of Class A common stock. The address for this entity is 55 East 52nd Street, New York, NY 10055.
- (4) Based solely on Schedule 13G/A filed on February 13, 2024 by The Vanguard Group, which is an investment advisor with shared voting power with respect to 44,211 shares of Class A common stock, sole dispositive power with respect to 5,535,827 shares of Class A common stock, and shared dispositive power with respect to 79,820 shares of Class A common stock. The address for this entity is 100 Vanguard Blvd., Malvern, PA 19355.
- (5) Consists of (a) 10,935,945 shares of Class B common stock held by Joseph Z. Zwillinger and Elizabeth L. Zwillinger, as Trustees of the Twin Wolves Revocable Trust under Revocable Trust Agreement dated September 27, 2017, of which Mr. Zwillinger is co-trustee and shares voting and investment power over such shares, (b) 1,875,000 shares of Class B common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock

options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024, and (c) 436,595 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024.

- (6) Consists of (a) 50,000 shares of Class A common stock held by Timothy O. Brown and Lindsay T. Brown, as Trustees of the Grenadier Trust Under Revocable Trust Agreement Dated January 22, 2018, of which Mr. Brown is co-trustee and shares voting and investment power over such shares, (b) 13,330,925 shares of Class B common stock held by Timothy O. Brown and Lindsay T. Brown, as Trustees of the Grenadier Trust Under Revocable Trust Agreement Dated January 22, 2018, of which Mr. Brown is co-trustee and shares voting and investment power over such shares, (c) 625,000 shares of Class B common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024, and (d) 436,595 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024.
- (7) Consists of 16,743 shares of Class A common stock.
- (8) Consists of (a) 127,625 shares of Class A common stock and (b) 309,895 shares of Class B common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024.
- (9) Consists of (a) 30,487 shares of Class A common stock, (b) 115,605 shares of Class B common stock and (b) 37,500 shares of Class B common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024.
- (10) Consists of (a) 30,487 shares of Class A common stock, (b) 772,725 shares of Class B common stock and (c) 1,077,325 shares of Class B common stock held by Dick W. Boyce & Sandy W. Boyce Revocable Trust Agreement Dated December 30, 1994, of which Mr. Boyce is co-trustee and shares voting and investment power over such shares.
- (11) Consists of (a) 30,487 shares of Class A common stock, (b) 8,084 shares of Class B common stock and (b) 66,916 shares of Class B common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024.
- (12) Consists of 15,841 shares of Class A common stock.
- (13) Consists of (a) 130,487 shares of Class A common stock and (b) 16,824,330 shares of Class B common stock held by Maveron Equity Partners V, MEP Associates V, and Maveron V Entrepreneurs.
- (14) Consists of (a) 432,157 shares of Class A common stock, (b) 873,190 shares of Class A common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024, (b) 43,064,939 shares of Class B common stock and (c) 2,914,311 shares of Class B common stock issuable upon the exercise of stock options that were exercisable within 60 days of March 31, 2024.

# TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PERSONS

# **RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS POLICY AND PROCEDURES**

In November 2021 in connection with our IPO, our Board of Directors adopted a written Related Person Transactions Policy that sets forth the Company's policies and procedures regarding the identification, review, consideration, and approval or ratification of "related persons transactions." For purposes of the Company's policy only, a "related person transaction" is a transaction, arrangement, or relationship (or any series of similar transactions, arrangements, or relationships) in which the Company and any "related person" are participants involving an amount that exceeds \$120,000. Transactions involving compensation for services provided to the Company as an employee, director, consultant, or similar capacity by a related person are not covered by this policy. A related person is any person who is, or at any time since the beginning of the Company's last fiscal year was, a director or executive officer of the Company or a nominee to be director of the Company, or more than 5% stockholder of the Company, including any of their immediate family members, and any entity in which such person is an executive officer, partner, or principal or holds a similar control position or in which such person has a 5% or greater beneficial ownership interest.

Under the policy, in the event that the Company proposes to enter into, or materially amend, a related person transaction, management of the Company shall present such related person transaction to the Audit Committee for review, consideration, and approval or ratification. The presentation shall include, to the extent reasonably available, a description of (a) all of the parties thereto, (b) the interests, direct or indirect, of any related person in the transaction in sufficient detail so as to enable the Audit Committee to fully assess such interests, (c) a description of the purpose of the transaction, (d) all of the material facts of the proposed related person transaction, including the proposed aggregate value of such transaction, or, in the case of indebtedness, that amount of principal that would be involved, (e) the benefits to the Company of the proposed related person transaction is on terms that are comparable to the terms available to or from, as the case may be, an unrelated third party or to employees generally, and (h) management's recommendation with respect to the proposed related person transaction. In the event the Audit Committee is asked to consider whether to ratify an ongoing related person transaction, in addition to the information identified above, the presentation shall include a description of the extent of work performed and remaining to be performed in connection with the transaction and an assessment of the potential risks and costs of termination of the transaction, and where appropriate, the possibility of modification of the transaction.

To identify related person transactions in advance, the Company relies on information supplied by its executive officers, directors, and certain significant stockholders. In considering related person transactions, the Audit Committee takes into account the relevant available facts and circumstances including, but not limited to (a) the risks, costs, and benefits to the Company, (b) the impact on a director's independence in the event the related person is a director, immediate family member of a director, or an entity with which a director is affiliated, (c) the terms of the transaction, (d) the availability of other sources for comparable services or products and (e) the terms available to or from, as the case may be, unrelated third parties or to or from employees generally.

In the event a director has a direct or indirect material interest in the proposed transaction, the director must recuse himself or herself from the deliberations and approval. If, however, a proposed related person transaction arises in which all directors are deemed to have a direct or indirect material interest in the transaction, the interested directors may participate in the consideration and approval of the proposed related person transaction. The policy requires that, in determining whether to approve, ratify or reject a related person transaction, the Audit Committee approve

only those transactions that, in light of known circumstances, are in, or are not inconsistent with, the best interests of the Company and its stockholders, as the Committee determines in the good faith exercise of its discretion.

# CERTAIN RELATED PERSON TRANSACTIONS

The following is a summary of transactions since January 1, 2023 to which we have been a participant in which the amount involved exceeded or will exceed \$120,000, and in which any of our directors, executive officers, or holders of more than 5% of our capital stock, or any member of the immediate family of the foregoing persons, had or will have a direct or indirect material interest, other than compensation arrangements which are described in the sections titled "Executive Compensation" and "Non-Employee Director Compensation."

## **Employment of an Immediate Family Member**

The son of Dick Boyce, a member of our Board of Directors, is currently employed by us and has been employed by us since January 1, 2018. He does not share a household with Mr. Boyce and is not one of our executive officers. In 2023, his salary was between \$200,000 and \$250,000 and he earned bonuses between \$85,000 and \$90,000. His current salary is between \$200,000 and \$250,000. He participates in compensation and incentive plans or arrangements on the same basis as similarly situated employees.

# **Investors' Rights Agreement**

We are a party to an amended and restated investors' rights agreement with certain holders of our Class A common stock and Class B common stock, including (1) entities affiliated with Messrs. Zwillinger and Brown, our co-founders and members of our Board of Directors and (2) entities affiliated with Maveron, a holder of greater than 5% of our Class B common stock and affiliate of Mr. Levitan, a member of our Board of Directors, that provided or provides such holders with certain registration rights, including the right to demand that we file a registration statement or request that their shares be covered by a registration statement that we are otherwise filing subject to certain limitations. This agreement terminated upon the completion of our IPO, except with respect to registration rights. Each holder's registration rights terminate upon the earliest to occur of (a) a deemed liquidation event as defined in our certificate of incorporation, (b) such time as Rule 144 or another similar exemption under the Securities Act is available for the sale of all of such holder's shares without limitation during a three month period without registration (assuming the Company is in compliance with the current public information required under Rule 144(c)(1)), and (c) the fifth anniversary of the IPO.

## INDEMNIFICATION

Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation contains provisions limiting the liability of directors, and our Bylaws provide that we will indemnify each of our directors and officers to the fullest extent permitted under Delaware law. Our amended and restated certificate of incorporation and Bylaws also provide our Board of Directors with discretion to indemnify our employees and other agents when determined appropriate by our Board. The Company has also entered into indemnity agreements with each of our directors and executive officers, which requires us to indemnify them.

## HOUSEHOLDING OF PROXY MATERIALS

The SEC has adopted rules that permit companies and intermediaries (e.g., brokers) to satisfy the delivery requirements for Notices of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or other Annual Meeting materials with respect to two or more stockholders sharing the same address by delivering a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials or other Annual Meeting materials addressed to those stockholders. This process, which is commonly referred to as "householding," potentially means extra convenience for stockholders and cost savings for companies.

This year, a number of brokers with account holders who are Allbirds stockholders will be "householding" the Company's proxy materials. A single Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials will be delivered to multiple stockholders sharing an address unless contrary instructions have been received from the affected stockholders. Once you have received notice from your broker that they will be "householding" communications to your address, "householding" will continue until you are notified otherwise or until you revoke your consent. If, at any time, you no longer wish to participate in "householding" and would prefer to receive a Notice of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials, please notify your broker or Allbirds. Direct your written request to Allbirds, Inc., Secretary, 730 Montgomery Street, San Francisco, CA 94111. Stockholders who currently receive multiple copies of the Notices of Internet Availability of Proxy Materials at their addresses and would like to request "householding" of their communications should contact their brokers.

## **OTHER MATTERS**

The Board of Directors knows of no other matters that will be presented for consideration at the Annual Meeting. If any other matters are properly brought before the meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the accompanying proxy to vote on such matters in accordance with their best judgment.

By Order of the Board of Directors

Jai Vernichos

Joe Vernachio President, Chief Executive Officer and Secretary

April 25, 2024

We have filed our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 with the SEC. It is available free of charge at the SEC's web site at www.sec.gov. Stockholders can also access this Proxy Statement and our Annual Report on Form 10-K at *ir.allbirds.com*. A copy of the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2023 is available without charge upon written request to: Secretary, Allbirds, Inc., 730 Montgomery Street, San Francisco, CA 94111.

ALLBRDS, INC 730 MONTGOMERY STREET SAN FRANCISCO, CA 94111



VOTE BY INTERNET Before the Meeting - Go to <u>www.proxyvote.com</u> or scan the QR Barcode above Use the Internet to transmit your voting instructions and for electronic delivery of information. Vote by 11:59 p.m. Eastern Time on June 6, 2024. Have your proxy card in hard when you access the website and follow the instructions to obtain your records and to create an electronic voting instruction form.

 $\textit{During The Meeting - Go to } \underline{www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024}$ 

You may attend the meeting via the Internet and vote during the meeting. Have the information that is printed in the box marked by the arrow available and follow the instructions.

VOTE BY PHONE - 1-800-690-6903 Use any touch-tone telephone to transmit your voting instructions. Vote by 11:59 pr. Eastern Time on lune 6, 2024. Have your proxy card in hand when you call and then follow the instructions.

VOTE BY MAIL Mark, sign and date your proxy card and return it in the postage-paid envelope we have provided or return it to Vote Processing, c/o Broadridge, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, IPV 11777.

TO VOTE, MARK BLOCKS BELOW IN BLUE OR BLACK INK AS FOLLOWS:

				V41351-P03945 KEEP T	HIS PORTION	FOR YOU	
— — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — — —	XY CAR	D IS VA	ALID ONI	LY WHEN SIGNED AND DATED.	AND RETURN	V THIS POP	RTION OF
LLBIRDS, INC. The Board of Directors recommends you vote FOR each of the following nominees:	For W All	/ithhold All	I For All Except	To withhold authority to vote for any individual nominee(s), mark "For All Except" and write the number(s) of the nominee(s) on the line below.		_	$\overline{}$
1. Election of Class III Directors	Ο						
Nominees:							-
01) Dick Boyce 02) Timothy Brown 03) Mandy Fields							
The Board of Directors recommends you vote FOR the foll	owing pr	oposal	:		For	Against	Abstai
<ol> <li>Ratification of the selection of Deloitte &amp; Touche LLP as December 31, 2024.</li> </ol>	s the Corr	1pany's	independe	nt registered public accounting firm for the fiscal year end	ding 🛛	Ο	D
IOTE: In their discretion, the proxies are authorized to vote upo ontinuation, or postponement thereof.	on such ot	her bus:	iness as ma	ay properly come before the meeting or any adjournment,			
Please sign exactly as your name(s) appear(s) hereon. When s administrator, or other fiduciary, please give full title as such. J personally, All holders must sign. If a corporation or partnership or partnership name by authorized officer.	oint owne	ers shoul	ld each sig	n			
Signature [PLEASE SIGN WITHIN BOX1 Date				Signature (loint Owners) Date	_		

Important Notice Regarding the Availability of Proxy Materials for the 2024 Annual Meeting: The Notice and Proxy Statement and Annual Report are available at www.proxyvote.com.

> ALLBIRDS, INC. Annual Meeting of Stockholders June 7, 2024, 12:00 p.m. Pacific Time This proxy is solicited by the Board of Directors

V41352-P03945

The stockholder(s) acknowledge(s) receipt of the Notice of the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Allbirds, Inc. and the Proxy Statement and hereby appoint(s) Joe Vernachio and Ann Mitchell, or any of them, as proxies, each with the power to appoint his or her substitute, and hereby authorize(s) them to act as attorneys and proxies to represent and to vote, as designated on the reverse side of this ballot (with discretionary authority under Proposal 1 to vote for a substitute nominee if any nominee is unable to serve or for good cause will not serve), all of the shares of common stock of Allbirds, Inc. that the stockholder(s) is/are entitled to vote at the 2024 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held at 12:00 p.m. Pacific Time on June 7, 2024 via a live audio-only webcast at www.virtualshareholdermeeting.com/BIRD2024, and any adjournments, continuations, or postponements thereof.

This proxy, when properly executed, will be voted in the manner directed herein. If no such direction is made, this proxy will be voted in accordance with the Board of Directors' recommendations. The above named proxies are authorized to vote in their discretion upon such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournments, continuations, or postponements thereof.

Continued and to be signed on reverse side